
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the
meeting are requested to notify the City of Elko Planning Department, 1751College Avenue, Elko,
Nevada, 89801 or by calling (775) 777-7160.

Dated this 28th day of December, 2017.

The public may contact Shelby Archuleta by phone at (775) 777-7160 or by email at
sarchuleta@elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. The
agenda and supporting material is also available at Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko,
NV.

Postedby:~Sh~e=l~b~~~~~~==~T~e~chn==i~ci~a~n__ -4~~~~~~~~~~~ __

Name Title

ELKO CITY HALL - 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: December 28,2017 2:00 p.m.

ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT - 1448 Silver Street, Elko NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: December 28,2017 2:15 p.m.

ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY - 720 Court Street, Elko, NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: December 28, 2017 2:05 p.m.

ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE - 571 Idaho Street, Street, Elko, NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: December 28, 2017 2:10 p.m.

Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Commission. In accordance with
NRS 241.020, the public notice and agenda were posted on the City of Elko Website at
http://www.elkocitynv.gov/, the State of Nevada's Public Notice Website at https://notice.nv.gov,
and in the following locations:

The City of Elko Planning Commission will meet in a special session on Thursday, January 4,
2018 in the Council Chambers at Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, Nevada, and
beginning at 5:30 P.M., P.S.T.

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE

1751College Avenue . Elko,Nevada89801 . (775)777-7160 . Fax (775) 777-7219

Website: www.elkocitynv.gov
Email: planning@elkocitynv.gov

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department



B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.

A. Summary of City Council Actions.

II. REPORTS

2. Review, consideration, and possible action to develop the Calendar Year 2018
Planning Commission Annual Work Program, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

1. Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the City of
Elko district boundary, specifically APN 001-200-002, removing the R (Single
Family Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District and replacing it with the PQP
(Public, Quasi-Public) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

A. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

I. NEW BUSINESS

December 5, 2017 - Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLLCALL

The Agenda for this meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission has been properly posted
for this date and time in accordance with NRS requirements.

CALL TO ORDER

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA
5:30 P.M., P.S.T., THURSDAY, JANUARY 4,2018
ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA



Respectfully submitted,

~in
City Planner

ADJOURNMENT

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion
of those comments. No action may be taken upon amatter raised under this item on the agenda
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

G. Staff.

F. Planning Commission evaluation. General discussion pertaining to motions, findings, and
other items related to meeting procedures.

E. Elko County Agendas and Minutes.

D. Preliminary agendas for Planning Commission meetings.

1. Zoning Bulletin

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.



Moved by Kevin Hodur, seconded by David Freistroffer.

***Motion: Approve the minutes from the Meeting on November 7, 2017.

November 7, 2017 - Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Page 1of29Planning Commission Meeting MinutesDecember 5,2017

Therewere nopublic comments made at this time.

City Staff:

Aaron Martinez
David Freistroffer
Jeff Dalling (arrived at 5:33 p.m.
John Anderson
Kevin Hodur
Stefan Beck
Tera Hooiman

Present:

ROLLCALL

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. by Aaron Martinez,
Planning Commission.

COMMENTS BY

CALL TO ORDER

CITYOFELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
5:30 P.M., P.S.T., TUESDAY, DECEMBER 5, 2017
ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

------------------------------------------ -



Miguel Cespedes, 1655 Winchester Drive, said he had the same concerns as everyone else. He
has one child that is a year old. He had the same concerns about having his kid playing outside
and someone relapses, they are driving, and they cause an accident. There are kids in the summer
that run up and down the street. He bought the home because he knew it was a nice, safe, quiet
area. This will cause problems for him in the future if it depreciates the value of his home. He
asked why he had to worry about that now, when he first bought it he thought it was a good
neighborhood with new homes where he would have no issues.

lJ....,~ .....,J0''LJrive,said that this halfway house had him concerned for
The Winchester Apartments, down the road, have been known to
't find it a good idea to put a halfway house where drugs are
to be worried about his things when he goes to work. He works
y had them stolen from people that were addicted to drugs

have that happen again.

Jonathon
the property
have drugs for
easy to be found.
hard for his things
before. He doesn't

to 60% of rehabilitation drug
oW.ontn, Her main concern was that she has little

d be providing a safe environment for
es, or wanders off, and leaves needles

that this would be a rehabilitation center and
""OA~..I.J.J.""J.J.~. She believed it should be put in a better

how it would affect the marketing for her house.

Codie Sharp, 1635 W'
abusers, or alcoholi
kids, and her nei
her children to play in
around and
people

be better monitored.
the halfway house would

Eric Velasquez, 1665 Winchester Drive, commented
neighborhood now. He thought there were already people
the neighborhood feel that this will drop ue of their
He thought this should be put in a better . the City,
He thought he was going to have a hard ~,"'.Ul_""'.L.L.L.

scare potential buyers away.

mcnester Drive,
ster Drive. (APN

The subject property is located generally on the
approximately 420 feet north of Orchard
001-920-054 )

Commissioner Jeff Dalling arrived.

2. Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 6-17,
filed by LYFE Recovery Services, LLC, which would allow for a Halfway House
for recovering alcohol and drug abusers within an R (Single-Family and Multi-
Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related . FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

A. PUBLIC HEARING

I. NEW BUSINESS

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

Page 2 of29Planning Commission Meeting MinutesDecember 5, 2017



Page 3 of29Planning Commission Meeting MinutesDecember 5, 2017

Jeremy Draper, Development Manager, said the Development Department concurred with the
Planning Department as it was presented, with this particular use. In Mr. Draper's memo under
Recommendations, Recommendation Number 5, which would require additional parking, he

Ms. Laughlin said the findings were consistent and they do consider the parking as legal non
conforming. Her recommendation was if this was approved tonight, she would recommend the
conditions listed in the memo.

d to be clear. He asked if Ms. Laughlin's findings and conclusion
sistent.

Chairman Aaron

ing Department, or communication
Halfway House. Staff reached out to Ms.
, which are in front of you. Staff also has

being It is listed on several different venues for
sts at a time. They are currently unlicensed to be

concern. On one of those websites it states that
.........._ ..,""u away from the home. If that's the case, Ms. Laughlin's
s was if they are being monitored by someone who lives
facility. How are the rules being enforced and monitored?

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, wanted to start off with a little background information. The
property is zoned R, which is the Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential District. It does
allow for this type of development with a Conditional Use Permit. The subject property was
developed as a single family residence and it was built to the existing setback requirements.
There are no additional areas within the property to accommodate any growth, accessory uses, or
off-street parking. The City of Elko issued a building permit in 1999 for the construction of the
existing house. It was originally developed as an elderly care facility for 10 or fewer, therefore it
did not require a CUP, as that is a principle permitted use within the zoning district. Beehive
Homes was the original developer of the property and they owned the property until July 2017.
At that time it was sold to the current owner, who leases the property Recovery. The
property owner's permission for LYFE Recovery to apply for this Use Permit was
included in the packet. One of staff's largest concerns of this is . eet all of the applicable
Codes and Master Plans, with the exception of 3-2-17. Staff I 17 a couple of
different ways. If you look at it as a boarding house, or a current code
requires one parking space per sleeping room, or one They also
looked at it as ITE as well, which would require .45 would equate
to 4.5 parking spaces that are 9' by 20'. It
driveway area, none of which are outside the
parking be outside the front setback. But staff looks at
look at the Code section that talks about legal non-e ..
conforming uses and may be allowed to . ue provided,
uses may not be extended, enlarged, or ther non-
Conditional Use Permit. As this was pulled
showed one ADA Handicapped Parking S
by the City of Elko. Staff this could
want to limit the parki .ded ............,.,....."" ...u L.'-lU.L""~V'", ..:l.l.l

the adjacent property
brought up ...........,.............-''''......
amongst staff. Some of
Payne and



Page 4 of29Planning Commission Meeting MinutesDecember 5,2017

there are numerous
breach of the rules

snorrmna: approval based
on how the rules are

aroC' ..... a that the rules are

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, concurred with a IJ'_", ........, ..'

on what staff has presented. He thought they should hear from
enforced and maintained at the facility, who is in charge at
followed, and it would be beneficial to go through the
Midnight curfew, and he wasn't sure if that was aDt)r01Dm"~r
type of discussion for the benefit of the public and
tonight. One other concern he had was that he
to light that we have rentals occurring for trave
issue with the Planning Commission. Mr. Wilkinson di
Conditional Use Permit Application.

pany runs structured
. There are a set of rules

.......n.A5"ill ...''''''' to ensure that the
clearly state in the rules that

for . That should there be any
unmeosater with the onsite staff. They have a

. the owner, she has an Operations
properties. She stated that she was really
residences in every community in

ity, D Fallon, Elko, Reno, and Sparks. She also
. They are not a new to running Halfway Houses.
halfway houses provide social reintegration, which

they do housing only. Treatment is all done offsite. They
have requi participate in a recovery program, so that they do stay sober and
clean, but they people are going to pick a multitude of treatment modalities.
They encourage of its forms, and they are there to support and encourage them to
continue to do that. drug use or alcohol use. They have a breathalyzer on site and if
someone's drug of is alcohol, then anytime they return to the property they ask them to
blow into the breathalyzer. If they are impaired or intoxicated they are not allowed to remain on
the property. They have a preapproved plan with that person and their family as to what they
would do at that point. They also do random drug testing. Their staff members do that on a
random number generator basis. They use instant tests onsite, so they know the results
immediately. What they've done while they tried to get all the paperwork ready for the
Conditional Use Permit Application was listed it on Airbnb, and they do have residents who have
booked with them through Airbnb. They are not operating as a life recovery property, so at this
time they had someone who was local who would do a check-in for Airbnb residents that wanted
to stay with them. As soon as the Conditional Use Permit is in place, then she will have a full

John Holmes, Fire Marshal, stated that a fire inspection of the facility is mandatory, and keeping
on an annual inspection rotation. If they are going to have over 10 occupants, sprinklers will
need to be installed into the facility.

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, said the Engineering Department had the same concerns about
parking.

asked that to be struck, as this would be a Conditional Use Permit allowing for the continuation
of this legal non-conforming use.

---------------------------------------------------------



Page 5 of29Planning Commission Meeting MinutesDecember 5, 2017

Ms. Payne explained that they had a few problems with getting all of the plans that were needed
to submit to the Planning Department. Month after month they were being delayed, so they did
what they needed to do to generate revenue and listed it on Airbnb. It's not something that it was
intended for, but this property is a financial responsibility of hers. Itwas just a way to make sure
some of the rooms were being occupied and generating some revue.

Ms. Laughlin Payne applied for Business license for the Lyfe Recovery
Services home, that Business License because it needed a CUP, which was back
in Mayor June of . Staff provided support to Ms. Payne and told her she needed to
have a Conditional U ermit. That's why it's in front of you now. The business license was for
a sober living facility, it wasn't for a rooming house.

lication was in front of the Planning Commission,
their permitted usage of that facility now.

rooming or boarding house, is not
aen.tlWZoning District. An elderly care facility of

how the Beehive Home was allowed to
have three or more rooms that you rent,

License and you are required to pay room
,\13,1"1'\13,. one of those are being done.

Ms. Laughlin stated
listed as a principle
ten or fewer is lis
be there without a '-"'V ....~ .....,

Ms. Payne explained that they have a listing on Airbnb, Craig's
Place.

Chairman Martinez asked what the current status of the facility was and who was using it. He
also asked how a person would come into contact with her corporation in order to stay in the
facility.

time staff member that will move to the property. Since they have had some residents come
through Airbnb she comes out and spends two to three days a week. Curfew is 10:30pm every
night, and its 9:00 pm for the first thirty days. They have a pretty extensive business plan and an
extensive amount of experience running sober living homes. This property is almost her 40th

home. She ran 16homes in northern California, 15 homes in Southern Nevada, and now the 10
locations in Northern Nevada.

y,Ms. Payne said it was not advertised as a reco
weekly, or monthly.



ChairmanMartinez said that concerned him, because it was outside of the City Code currently,
which is a blatant disregard for how the City of Elko operates and the residents nearby. To come
to this meeting and state, publicly, that she was operating illegally was shocking to Mr. Martinez.

Ms. Payne explained it is currently not a life recovery property yet. They are not operating
with those rules, because they don't have the approval to do it. The rules and concept is not in
that house right now, because they don't have the business license to operate Lyfe Recovery
there. She has a variety of people living in the house.

Payne how she was able to achieve that. He read that people could

mg to accomplish
te, and accountability. So it's

oecaase they have a set of rules and a
all different stages of recovery. If she talks

detox, and will have withdrawal
them at that point, because they don't

_~~'V"''',~~ that particular period. If someone is
ng to try follow the rules, and they are reaching out to

will give them a shot. If it's not working out with
problems, then they are not going to have them

l~.tpp·n-IAlnT is someone that is really trying to change their life

Page 6 of29Planning Commission Meeting MinutesDecember 5, 2017

Commissioner Beck said he wanted to

ith, the Health Care
threshold for

Ms. Payne said they operate under NRS 449.008. What they have
Quality Compliance, Don Sampson down in Las Vegas, is they
HCQC, because they do not provide reintegration services.
released offenders, they aren't technically a halfway house.
which is the National Alliance of Recovery Residence.
recovery residence, meaning that there is a mamagelneln~Jm~lre
are followed by the company. In the NRS 449.008
reintegration services, they fall under that thresho
counseling on site. They are not required to ha
They are an ADA population that falls under the Fair

Commissioner Stefan Beck asked if this was a designated recovery house.

Ms. Payne said no. In every City that they go into, they go to get a business license and make
sure that they are operating correctly. It wasn't her intension to side swipe all of that, she just
needed to get some revenue.

Commissioner David Freistroffer asked Ms. Payne if she was aware of The Elko City Codes on
boarding houses, etc.



had discussed this with Ms. Payne in June, as well as another
Recovery that's no longer there. When the Business License

came in Ms. because it needed a CUP. Staff was basing it off of the definition
of Halfway House 3-2-2. If you look at the definition and the application, as well as
the services provided on her website, staff felt that it truly was a house for recovering
alcohol and drug abusers. In the R District it does require a CUP. She gave them the application
at that time. Staff could not give Ms. Payne copies of the plans that were submitted in 1999
without confirmation from the architect or design professional that developed the plans. We let
her know at that time, part of our application process is the Site Plan and Elevations of the
property. Then Ms. Payne came in in August to submit the application for the September
Planning Commission Meeting, she was one day late and the application wasn't filled out at that
time. We asked her to fill out the application and she missed the September meeting, but we
would take it onto the October meeting. Ms. Laughlin did not see her again until three weeks
ago. It has not been a delay on behalf of the City of Elko, we have tried to accommodate Ms.

Ms.

Page 70f29Planning Commission Meeting MinutesDecember 5, 2017

~,"",' ..iess to start in this town, there is a
,,!!,,'V.L.L.L.Lu.V.L.L'I!I89'-'.L.L what she perceived in the Cities

caused a delay since June or July. He asked

Commissioner Frei
need. He asked Ms.

was bought, and
nomes m Elko, except for one that

to Elko as a large

and more, to
Laughlin got

Use Permit.
, is have
just know

like this. She hasMs. Payne explained that this was the first time that she had to do
business licenses and approvals in all of the other locations, and
City Planning Meeting and apply for a Conditional Use
Laughlin, at first she didn't think she needed a CUP. She VJ!..~~.u.~~.l.l

make sure that it was understood exactly what they
back into the Code and in the Code they found that
She has not had to have this experience in the
the Fire Marshal come out and sign off. Some
that they are able to operate that. She has the City
well. She just had some out today in the Fallon house,
changed and then they signed them off. 't intend to
laws, or anything else. If this is dis will be a
diligence. She came out here month after
she talked to residents in the town. There
is attached to Vitality looked at
organization that has

Commissioner Freistroffer said he was struggling to understand how a company, which seems to
be rather large, could be ill-informed about Elko's localities, rules on operating any properties.
You have acquired a property that you don't know if you're going to get a CUP for. He wanted
to understand if her legal department, or anybody, had looked at if this was a feasible place to
have this, because the Planning Commission can deny it on many different grounds, and you're
obviously putting a big investment into it.

He understood it was investment, and understood about generating revenue, but at the sacrifice
of residents nearby, at some point you teeter off the ladder of acceptable, in his opinion.



Ms. Payne said most of time they do extensive property renovations. Normally they go in and
improve the property, but this one was move in ready. The concerns about property value going

Commissioner Dalling said that Ms. Payne lives in Reno, so she won't be there, but the
neighbors will be there every day. Their lives and their kids will be affected by this. He asked
Ms. Payne what her safety net was for the neighbors and what she had to say to them to make
them feel better about this.

perties for her. When they were invited to
got on phone call with him on her way home from

f Beehive, he buys distressed properties or properties
properties on Winchester were on the market. He

. She said she couldn't have asked for a better property.
They were them. In the meantime, while they were researching the area the
property contract as a single family home. She would look for more
properties like built, because for 10 residents to have their own room, half
bath, and a large co is exactly what they want for people who are going to live there
for a year or two. al is not to have people come in and out, their goal is to have them live
there for a year or two and truly achieve long lasting sobriety.

Commissioner Jeff
homes available

Page 8 of29Planning Commission Meeting MinutesDecember 5, 2017

Ms. Payne said that was

Commissioner Hodur pointed out that he
the statement from the website.

Ms. Payne explained that they uploaded Elko
as "coming soon". When it was brought to their attenti
changed it to "coming soon".

Commissioner Kevin Hodur asked Ms. Payne when

.gnation. He then read

Ms. Laughlin explained at first it was a residential group facility, and they were looking at the
definitions under residential group facility, which is a different' Residential Code.
As time went on we learned more about the business, we said no, uire a Conditional
Use Permit.

Commissioner Freistroffer said he was trying to get to the seriousness of this business, which
could be operating this facility in a residential neighborhood. He asked Ms. Laughlin where, in
her mind, could they have gotten the idea that they didn't need a permit, then they did need a
permit, and it was something that made her take time.

Payne and everything she needed, but for us to sign off on a business license for halfway house
on Winchester on this property, it would require a Conditional Use Permit.













































. . .

Ct~~te4,dh'09/2112Ql;~';-''

'~.T-¥ :
. '-. ,',I . ': ~.' .,~,,;.

l'l~ing c~~~~~tW~:·:i\~

. ";
, '

,~ ,

, i

. ,,'" r' c," ," '~, :' " > •~ • • • , > ';' ,~,,'~.~;'" .: -: ' ':1·/ ~~.::,'",'i~~~;,::(~~,:.';");~<' .' ~ :,5. '.Baci{~(~\U~aI;ptc!F .,;(Jdy:, ',.'.". .",;~s.eJ\\tl(ln~a~2t,;~llo'Y§;J<)Ie"r~~IttHgtf.' ......,

'~i!~WUij~ty~~{t4ti~i'~:.I:t~=·.
; btilt9itglQrm:aiifl~t!~s"as4tJoliee'<dtllar.tllleitt~tj~;',fEIItft~~~t~';tl~,Eand'l((st+' .,_'
:db~'ilH~lltJ,!~1;~~' ;!''l'~~·~sJ:ublj~;,This alit~DtdJijfJl~,,~tf , ,:h~,m~Dlti»zg .
()omlBi1Sionj~J~aJ>il~ol~;will btifiglill~k~;asa J11l1bli~ti:e~F:ill , ,ZDne~,~1ftlb~,J»trceJ
(:rillW R- a~sitltmfildtolp~p~')lb&.~&tie. .- ~.,"\,./ ~- _ -.

';\,6;,' BnsineSs, ImR"act·S:tatemellt NQ,f~eQu:t~~d:'· . ' ,

'", 'sUpplem~t~~i.,.,,·,\~_tW;'"::.....
8. Reooblfuenied- Milti()~~~~~~UiW an ameJtdnnm.\tlI"'~. ·~.lld1dI~I~!bound~~-al}!tt:;lt7lsn~itbaelhsapUblie h~~;,~t· ;, -.... . . .

,,':~:.PrepasedBy: C:at«f:~. "g'JUlufClty"P,}a,Dner
',. >.. ~'" t

" :,:10,.Agenda DiStrfbiltio1i1~~'";,:

'.
" :4;

3.

2.

, ', • " • . : .. i-. '. ·),;:It~',',
ElI~1)~~:=~=~S~\~";;r;;<-

' .. '/,_,~-c> :~~~·"""_";":1- .. ' ,,:. __ ' , . , .. -.-,-' _ f"_.:. ::'-':; j. _:'.~' .' _ '-~

'1. ':I~~~:~~~vi~!t'~8n:si~t~rlion~:md;P~'~j;.i~le\a~ctf~~,:'~'i~il.i~~.~a~;~Et~~~e1~tl~' ~e'"
(;l:ty <f(.. ;,_o\i.(l~trlet,bOWld~rre~f'sllecifit'ally A~N 061..20Q~1U)~;;rtWgvlng~tbeR .
Single:;Fai»ii(*'~~l)'d:,'MuI~\pJ~:tFamiJY'lfesi~ut;a"iDistti'et,:\~'I:t. ~q'i\'Cili.g·wi~jb)the~i'QP•.
;pijb~l\C'~,~U.}lJi:PuJjftic/B·striJt,jmd m"lttt_eFS~-;F~lat~dth&:t~t0:;· ':',S~tBLE" . AfCTI()N' .' z, .' '.. .r-:

r--?

~.



Initial

City Manager: Date: _

Initial

Assistan t City Manager: Date: I Z/2 (p/1 1- {2ec ,?JVI jV<1 tA.::I ctfY= j! I?vctl
/ I

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

Title: Tnihcrh<>o o{],e.zno.e
Applicant(s): c.;~ cl £U1.o
Site Location: I~ (Oll:tl Ave.. - Ai>N COl - 200 -002
Current Zoning: 1Z ate Received: Date Public Notice: tJjA
COMMENT:. ~~ !_~e;:~c1f ~ril~5 ~1eOld ]?Dlt('L__ __ t~_ ~_I')~_ -:fu-=~

STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: \ J 4

**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce **



Planning Commission Action SheetCreated on 1/23/2017

11.Agenda Distribution:

10.Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

9. Findings:

8. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Planning Commission

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: 2018 Work Program

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

5. Background Information: Each year the Planning Commission reviews the Annual
Work Program. The work program gives the Planning Commission direction on
various issues to address throughout the year.

4. Time Required: 10Minutes

3. Agenda Category: MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

2. Meeting Date: January 4, 2018

1. Review, consideration, and possible action to develop the Calendar Year 2018
Planning Commission Annual Work Program, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Agenda Item # I.A.2.

Elko City Planning Commission
Agenda Action Sheet



Initial

City Manager: Date: _

Initial

Assistant City Manager: Date: !?/ZlIilJ
**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

Current Zoning: Date Received: Date Public Notice: _

COMMENT: =r\')j S I~:ID C\fP'"flllf cJ.t:l.O ')OI'64rmU(:ll 7IannlJ
C1mm,- SSiDo lAbf\(.2r6jVOtm.

STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: 1/ '-1

**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce **

Title: '2OI£)j?)o.VWliY1j Comrr:Jiffii6D A1'1r)()allA.)ov'k' ~".arn
Applicant(s): _

Site Location: ---------------------------



I would like the Planning Commission to recommend any other changes to code or concerns they
may have in which we can try to address in 2018.

The revisions to the Planning Department applications and fee schedule will be complete in
February requiring several notices, public hearings and business impact statement which all take
time. The applications are under review by legal counsel.

The Master Plan Amendment as well as the Residential Business District took many months to
complete due to the complexity of the amendments and meetings that are required.

Ordinance 825 adding section 3-2-29 for Marijuana establishments
Ordinance 818 Home Occupation Zoning Amendment
Master Plan Amendment 1-17 Land use and transportation documents, Atlas #5, #6, #8 & #12.
Revisions to the Planning Department applications and fee schedule

Other projects completed or started, not in 2017 Work Program:

Completed
Started
On hold
Not Started

Completion ofthe new Residential Business District (RB)
Revise Sign Ordinance
Complete Zoning Ordinance Amendment 1-16
Review Zoning for residential parking in corridor.

Additional Information:
The 2017 Planning Commission Work Program consisted of the follow four items:

Agenda Item:

1. Review, consideration, and possible action to develop the Calendar Year 2018 Planning
Commission Annual Work Program, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

To: Planning Commission
From: Cathy Laughlin -City Planner
Date: December 18, 2017
Meeting Date: Thursday, January 4,2018

Memorandum

1751 College Avenue . ElkovNevada Svxul > (775)777-7160· Fax (775) 777-7119

Website: www.elkocity.com
Email: planning@ci.elko.nv.us

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department



I I !

-~
I- I

-~
I-J:m -1 I I

--
-

-
[-

"o :""
0

I- 'D
) I~. l:l ,CC io ,0 13 3 _. fn fn _. o :l N o ....
II. 00

I
.~

I
I"

-j-
--
--
-+
--
~~

len
cc

~
:01

l::a
,3

,-
t Ie » I
-t 'm

I I

I
I

1

I

1

1 i

I

I

1
.--

-~
-

-
--

!

*
*

*
*

--
-i
-IT'
I

::T
, -~-I zi ;:oi en
l

-
1 ~I ~I 3 en ~ 5·
'

(C
I I

I

---
1-
--1

---
-

1
-

-L
--

rl
I

~.
I

!

I
'

I I i
I

I

I
I

-
--
T
,--

----
--1

~--
0
'

0
UI

c_
UI

l
I

alO
J

a
CD

i
I

g:::
:J

g
g-

I
I

1-,1
55

-,
c:

I'"
'"

OJ
I

I~I
-<

~-<
I

-...
.J

I
-...

.J
i

'
I

--
-'-
j-;
--

-1--
---1

I
I

I

_
_
_

~
-
l-
-
'

-'
--
-I
-'
-~
--
-~
--
-+
--
--
j

I
I

I
10
-0

i
!

i
0

::a
I

~c
_!s

:~
'~~

Sf
C:
:O
J

--
•

m
c:

::::J
1
-'
a

m
0

OJ
CD
:g
.;g

,
-t

-~
1
-'

1
_
-t

"'<
:

,1
0m

,
i
z
e

L=I
10 '0 s
:» -0
0 .-t me -t» -. o z



•• _~ .lJ.A<I,...Ar",..."it~J~jTHOMSON REUTERSGD

Immunityfrom Regulation-State universityseeksto constructon-site
roadthat will intersectlocal road 2
RLUIPA-City deniesheightvariancefor personalchapel 4
Rezoning/Discrimination-Village'srezoningof parcel is challengedas
violating federalFairHousingAct 6
Preemption-City regulatesregistrationand useof drones 9
ZoningNewsfromAroundthe Nation 11

in this issue:

November 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 21



@ 2017 Thomson Reuters2

610 Opperman Drive
P.O.Box 64526

St. Paul, MN 55164-0526
1-800-229-2084

email: west.customerservice@thomsonreuters.com
ISSN 0514-7905

(2:2017Thomson Reuters
All Rights Reserved

Quinlan ™ is a Thomson Reuters brand

{~D~:THOMSON REUTERS·.....

-. ...... . '~~a.~ii ~tg~d~Wu~~~~a¬ rriurat~'a.nd:~Jt~()ritatw~'iri·
formation ". ,..'. . ~g,:thtr$ul?j~c.tmatte(co.v(:)r~d; however, this publication
was not nec~nlY prepared·bY Persons licensed to practice ·Iawin a particu
lar jurisdiction. The -publisner isJ19t engaged in rendering legal or.other profes
sional advice and this publication Is not a. substitute for the advice of an
attorney. If YQU require legal or other expert advice, you should seek the ser
vices of a competent attorney or other professional.
Zoning Bulletin is published and copyrighted by Thomson Reuters, 610 Op
perman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526. For subscription
information: call (800) 229-2084, or write to West, Credit Order Processing,
620 Opperman Drive, PO Box 64833, St. Paul, MN 55164-9753.

POSTMASTER: Send address changes to Zoning Bulletin, 610 Opperman
Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526.

Citation: Montclair State University v. County of Passaic, 2017 WL

University maintains it is immune from local regulation,
but county and city say such immunity does not apply
when there are roadway safety concerns

Immunity from Regulation-State
university seeks to construct on
site road that will intersect local
road

Zoning BulletinNovember 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 21



3~~.2017 Thomson Reuters

3611681 (N.J. Super. Ct. App. Div. 2017)
NEW JERSEY (08/23/17)- This case addressed the issue of whether limits

of a local government's authority to regulate development of a state universi
ty's property (see Rutgers, State University v. Piluso, 60 N.J. 142, 286 A.2d
697 (1972) apply to a state university's construction of a roadway that
intersects a county road.

The BackgroundlFacts: Montclair State University ("MSU") sought to
develop a roadway from its campus to Valley Road in the City of Clifton (the
"City") in the County of Passaic (the "County"). MSU spent approximately
six years consulting with the County and the City with regard to various objec
tions and concerns about the project. Finally, in 2014, MSU applied to the
County for a permit to install traffic controls at the intersection of the campus
roadway and Valley Road. In seeking that permit, MSU stated that it was
exempt, under New Jersey case law, from seeking any approvals from the
City's land use boards. In arguing such exemption, MSU referenced the case
of Rutgers, State University v. Piluso, 60 N.J. 142, 286 A.2d 697 (1972)
("Rutgers"). In Rutgers, among other things, the Supreme Court of New Jersey
held that state universities are permitted to exercise certain "governmentally
autonomous powers." The court in Rutgers held that the development of state
university property is excluded from local regulation.

The County refused to issue the permit sought by MSU because it believed
that MSU's roadway design failed to meet certain American Association of
State Highway Transportation and New Jersey Department of Transportation
standards and because it believed that the City's approval was required for a
proposed traffic signal as it would impact municipal roadways. Here, the
County and the City argued that the case at hand was "distinguishable" from
Rutgers. They argued that the limits of a local government's authority to
regulate development of a state university's property did not apply where
there were "legitimate safety concern[s]," such as here with regard to MSU's
roadway design.

MSU filed a legal action in court. It asked the court to declare that the
County's refusal to issue the permit was contrary to law, and it asked the court
to order the County to issue the permit to MSU so that MSU could construct
the roadway.

The trial judge dismissed MSU's complaint, citing an "insufficient record
to rely upon because MSU had not appeared before the [County] or [City]
planning boards."

MSU appealed. On appeal, it argued that the trial judge abused his discre
tion by dismissing MSU's complaint. MSU contended that, under Rutgers, its
only obligation was "to act reasonably and consult with the city and county."
MSU contended that it had met that obligation, and, as such, it was error for
the trial judge to dismiss its complaint.

On appeal, the County and the City reiterated their argument that the state
university development immunity from local regulation found under Rutgers
did not apply where, as here, there was "legitimate safety concern[s]."

DECISION: Judgment of Superior Court, Law Division, reversed, and
matter remanded.

November 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 21Zoning Bulletin



@ 2017 Thomson Reuters4

Citation: Milosavlejevic v. City of Brier, 2017 WL 3917015 (W.D. Wash.
2017)

WASHINGTON (09/07117)-This case addressed the issue of whether a
city's denial of a zoning variance for the construction of a personal chapel
violated the Religious Land Use and Institutionalized Persons Act ("RLU
IPA") (42 U.S.C.A. § 2000ee).

The BackgroundIFacts: Vladan Milosavlejevic ("Milosavlejevic") sought
to build a personal Serbian Orthodox chapel on property owned by his
company in a single-family residential zone in the City of Brier (the "City").
Milosavlejevic sought to build a chapel with two domes, each nearly 40.5 feet
high. He claimed that the height of the domes was necessary to comply with
religious standards, including a "Serbian Orthodox belief that 40 is a holy
number." Because the City Municipal Code (the "Code") limited buildings in

Variance applicant claims denial substantially burdens his
exercise of religion in violation of RLUIPA

RLUIPA-Cjty denies height
variance for personal chapel

The Superior Court of New Jersey, Appellate Division, held that the state
university development immunity from local regulation found under Rutgers
also applied here-to a state university's construction of an on-site road that
will intersect a local or county road. However, the court emphasized that such
"immunity [from regulation] is not completely unbridled." The court explained
that state universities have "an 'implied duty' to consider local interests that
obviously include legitimate 'safety concerns.' " To satisfy such an obliga
tion, said the court, "a state university 'ought to consult with local authorities
and sympathetically listen and give every consideration to local objections,
problems and suggestions in order to minimize conflict as much as possible.' "
Addressing the City and County's argument directly, the court said that in or
der for a state university to satisfy its obligation to reasonably consider "local
safety concerns," the state university is "not obligated to appear before local
land use boards," but must listen to and consider local objections.

Whether a state university has complied with its obligation to consult and
consider local concerns is a 'judicial function not conditioned upon consider
ation by a local zoning board," said the court. Here, the court remanded the
matter to the trial judge for reinstatement of MSU's complaint, and for the
judge to determine whether MSU satisfied those obligations under Rutgers.

See also: Rutgers, State University v. Piluso, 60 N.J. 142, 286 A.2d 697
(1972).

See also: Township of Fairfield v. State, Dept. of Transp., 440 N.J. Super.
310, 113 A.3d 267 (App. Div. 2015), certification denied, 222 N.J. 310, 118
A.3d 350 (2015) (quoting Garden State Farms, Inc. v. Bay, 77 N.J. 439, 390
A.2d 1177 (1978).

Zoning BulletinNovember 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 21



5!g. 2017 Thomson Reuters

a single-family residential zone to 30 feet in height, Milosavlejevic applied to
the City for a height variance to construct his chapel.

The City denied Milosavlejevic's variance request on the basis that
Milosavlejevic met only two of eight mandatory criteria for granting variances.

Milosavlejevic then filed a legal action against the City. Among other
things, Milosavlejevic claimed that the City's denial of his requested height
variance violated the substantial burden provision and the equal terms provi
sion ofRLUIPA. (See 42 U.S.C.A. § 2000cc.)

Under RLUIPA's substantial burden provision, a "government land-use
regulation 'that imposes a substantial burden on the religious exercise of a
[person, including a] religious assembly or institution' is unlawful 'unless the
government demonstrates that imposition of the burden ... is in furtherance
of a compelling government interest; and is the least restrictive means of
furthering that compelling governmental interest.' " (See 42 U .S.C.A.
§ 2000cc(a)(l).) Under RLUIPA's equal terms provision, governments are
prohibited from imposing land-use "restriction[s] on a religious assembly 'on
less than equal terms' with a nonreligious assembly." (See 42 U.S.C.A.
§ 200Occ(b).)

The City argued that Milosavlejevic's RLUIPA claims failed because: (1)
Milosavlejevic failed to demonstrate that his exercise of religion was
substantially burdened by the City's denial of his variance request because
alternative locations exited in which Milosavlejevic could practice his religion;
and (2) Milosavlejevic was not a "religious assembly," and even if he was, the
City did not treat him on "less than equal terms to comparable nonreligious or
secular assemblies or institutions."

The City asked the court to find there were no material issues of fact in
dispute, and to issue summary judgment in its favor on the law alone.
DECISION: City's motion for summary judgment granted, and

Milosavlejevic'sclaimsdismissed.
The United States District Court, W.D. Washington, held that Milosavle

jevic's RLUIPA claims failed.
In so holding, the court agreed with the City's arguments. The court found

that Milosavlejevic failed to demonstrate that his free exercise of religion was
"substantially burdened" by the city's failure to grant his requested height
variance. The court found that Milosavlejevic had "ready alternative places of
worship at his disposal," including at home or other faith centers. The court
noted that Milosavlejevic's own witness, an Orthodox priest, had stated that
Milosavlejevic's prayer could take place anywhere, including within other
churches and homes. The court also found that the City had not precluded
Milosavlejevic from practicing his faith at home or other faith centers. Fur
ther, the court stated that "the City's zoning procedures do not impose a
substantial burden simply because they prevent a religious institution or person
from constructing an ideal place of worship." While worshipping within a
home or church in the local county was "unsatisfactory" to Milosavlejevic,
that "inconvenience [did] not rise to the level of a substantial burden," said the
court. Additionally, the court noted that Milosavlejevic had the option of
submitting a building permit application for land located within a different

November 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 21Zoning Bulletin



Citation: MHANY Management, Inc. v. County of Nassau, 2017 WL
4174787 (E.D. N.Y. 2017)

NEW YORK (09/19/17)-This case addressed the issue of whether a vil
lage, in rezoning a parcel of land, was liable under the federal Fair Housing
Act based on disparate impact and disparate treatment. More specifically, it
addressed whether the "substantial, legitimate, nondiscriminatory interests"
proffered by the village in support of its zoning change "could be served by
another practice that has a less discriminatory effect."

The Background/Facts: The Village of Garden City (the "Village")

Opponents sayan alternative zoning designation would
have had allowed for multi-family housing and thus had a
less discriminatory effect on minorities

Rezoning/Discrimination-Village's
rezoning of parcel is challenged as
violating federal Fair Housing Act

@ 2017 Thomson Reuters6

Milosavlejevic had also brought a Section 1983 claim, alleging that the City's vari
ance denial violated his right to free exercise of religion and equal protection. The
court rejected those claims also, finding that: the Section 1983 claims relied on the
same, inadequate facts and evidence as Milosavlejevic's RLUIPA claims; and that
Milosavlejevic "[ail]ed] to demonstrate either unequal treatment or any racial
animus" by the City in the denial of the variance. Moreover, the court emphasized that
Milosavlejevic's discrimination claims were "undermined by thefact that hisvariance
application met only two of eight mandatory criteria for granting variances."

Case Note:

zone, which could be "inconvenient," but was "not substantially burdensome,"
particularly given that Milosavlejevic had experience in the construction busi
ness and owned additional properties.

With regard to Milosavlejevic's claim under the equal terms provision of
RLUIPA, the court agreed with the City that, even if Milosavlejevic qualified
as a "religious assembly or institution," he failed to demonstrate that he was
treated less than equal to similarly situated applicants. The court found that
Milosavlejevic failed to "offer a suitable comparator." He had compared his
proposed chapel to utility towers that had been approved at a height greater
than 30 feet, but the court found that "[u]tility towers are not suitable compara
tors to chapels" as they "serve completely different purposes" and are "located
within different City zones with different zoning criteria."

See also: International Church of Foursquare Gospel v. City of San
Leandro, 673 F.3d 1059 (9th Cir. 2011).

Zoning BulletinNovember 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 21



rezoned a parcel of land from a Public Use ("P") designation to a Residential
Townhouse ("R-T") zoning designation. The parcel had previously been oc
cupied by numerous government offices. Following that rezoning, MHANY
Management, Inc. ("MHANY") challenged the rezoning. MHANY argued
that because an R-T zoning designation did not allow any "affordable
multifamily housing," the rezoning of the parcel had a disparate impact on
minorities and disparate treatment of minorities-namely African Americans
and Hispanics. MHANY maintained that an alternative zoning designation
would have had allowed for multi-family housing and thus had a less
discriminatory effect on minorities. Specifically, MHANY had maintained
that a CO-5(b) zone with multi-family residential group restrictions ("R-M"
zoning controls), which would have allowed for the construction of multifam
ily housing such as apartment buildings, would have had a less discriminatory
effect than the R-T zoning controls that were adopted by the Village. MHANY,
which was later joined by intervenor New York Communities for Change,
(hereinafter, collectively, "MHANY") brought a housing discrimination ac
tion against the Village.

After trial, agreeing with MHANY, the United States District Court, E.D.
New York found that based on the Village's rezoning of the parcel from a P to
R-T zoning designation, the Village was liable under various federal laws,
including the Fair Housing Act (the "FHA"), 42 U.S.C.A. §§ 3601 to 3618,
based on disparate impact and disparate treatment.

MHANY and the Village cross-appealed. The United States Court of Ap
peals for the Second Circuit affirmed the majority of the Court's conclusions,
but remanded the case on two points, one of which was addressed is addressed
here. The Second Circuit held that the district court had applied an incorrect
standard in addressing MHANY's FHA disparate impact claims. The Second
Circuit explained that the district court should have analyzed the disparate
impact claims under the standard announced by the Secretary of Housing and
Urban Development ("HUD") in 2013. (See Implementation of the Fair Hous
ing Act's Discriminatory Effects Standard, 78 Fed. Reg. 11,460 (Feb. 15,
2013) (codified at 24 C.P.R. § 100.500).) The Second Circuit found that the
FHA was "ambiguous on the relati ve burdens of the parties, and therefore
HUD's interpretation was entitled to deference."

Under HUD's standard, in order to succeed on a FHA disparate impact
claim, a plaintiff-such as MHANY, here-must present a prima facie (i.e.,
on its face) case of disparate impact. The burden then shifts to the defendant
(here, the Village) to demonstrate that the "challenged practice is necessary to
achieve one or more substantial, legitimate, nondiscriminatory interests of the
respondent or defendant." (24 C.F.R. § l00.500(c)(1)-(2).) As a third step, the
burden shifts back to the plaintiff to prove that the defendant's "substantial, le
gitimate, nondiscriminatory interests supporting the challenged practice could
be served by another practice that has a less discriminatory effect." (24 C.P.R.
§ l00.500(c)(3).)

Here, the Second Circuit held that the first two steps were met: "MHANY
more than established a prima facie case[,] ... [and] [the Village] identified
legitimate, bona fide governmental interests, such as increased traffic and
strain on public schools." However, the Court remanded the case back to the

November 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 21Zoning Bulletin

7@I 2017 Thomson Reuters



@:. 2017 Thomson Reuters8

district court with instructions that the district court determine whether
MHANY proved at trial that the "substantial, legitimate, nondiscriminatory
interests" proffered by the Village in support of its zoning shift "could be
served by another practice that has a less discriminatory effect." (See 24 C.ER.
§ lOO.500(c)(3).)

DECISION: Judgment for MHANY.
The United States District Court, E.D. New York, found that MHANY met

its burden at trial in demonstrating, by a preponderance of the evidence, that
the Village's proffered reasons for its chosen zoning change (P to R-T) could
have been met by another practice that had a less discriminatory effect.

As an initial point, re-addressing the first step in the HUD standard analysis
of this disparate impact claim, the court reiterated its previous holding that
R-M zoning would have provided for a "significantly larger percentage of
minority household than the pool of potential renters in the R-T zoning." In
other words, MHANY had established that the adoption of an R-T zoning
instead of an R-M zoning "affected minority residents to a greater degree." In
support of this finding, the court pointed to evidence that the R-T zoning would
not have allowed for "any measurable number of affordable housing units,"
while the R-M zoning would have allowed for 45 to 78 affordable housing
units. The court further noted that 88% of those on the Section 8 rental hous
ing list in the county were African American and Hispanic households, even
though those households comprised only 14.8% of all households in the
county. Thus, the court had found that R-M zoning would create more afford
able housing units available to minorities than the R-T zoning. Accordingly,
the court reiterated its previous holding (made prior to the appeal and remand)
that "R-M zoning controls would have a less discriminatory effect than R-T
zoning controls."

Re-addressing the second step in the analysis, the court noted that the Vil
lage had identified its "legitimate, bona fide governmental interests" in the
zoning change as including: "controlling traffic; minimizing school over
crowding; developing townhouses; maintaining the character of the area; and
creating a transition zone." On appeal, the Second Circuit had concluded that
the only "legitimate interests" of those claimed by the Village were the
interests of "minimizing traffic and school overcrowding."

Finally, the court addressed the issue that was remanded to it from the
Second Circuit: whether MHANY had met its burden at the third step of
HUD's disparate impact burden shifting analysis. (See 24 C.F.R.
§ lOO.500(c)(3).) For guidance, the court looked to the language of the statute
and HUD's interpretation.

The statute provides:
"If the respondent or defendant satisfies the burden of proof set forth in paragraph
(c)(2) of this section [(i.e., the first and second steps of the analysis)], the charging
party or plaintiff may still prevail upon proving that the substantial, legitimate,
nondiscriminatory interests supporting the challenged practice could be served by
another practice that has a less discriminatory effect."

(24 C.F.R. § lOO.500(c)(3).) And, the court found that "HUD's interpreta
tion could not be clearer that a plaintiff's burden under 24 C.F.R.
§ lOO.500(c)(3) is not to show that the less discriminatory practice would be

Zoning BulletinNovember 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 21



Drone owner contends city regulations are preempted by
Federal Aviation Administration regulations

Citation: Singer v. City of Newton, 2017 WL 4176477 (D. Mass. 2017)
MASSACHUSETTS (09/21117)-This case addressed the issue of whether

a city ordinance, requiring the registration of drones and prohibiting operation
of drones out of the operator's line of sight or in certain areas without permit
or express permission, was preempted by Federal Aviation Administration
regulations.

The Background/Facts. Michael Singer ("Singer") was a resident of the

Preemption-City regulates
registration and use of drones

The Second Circuit had also vacated the district court's grant of summary judgment to
the County of Nassau on MHANY's "steering" claims under Section 804(a) of the
FHA and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,42 U.S.CA. § 2000d ("Title VII"),
and remandedfor reconsideration of those claims. Those claims were not addressed in
the court opinion summarized here.

Case Note:

9@) 2017 Thomson Reuters

equally effective, but merely that it must serve a defendant's legitimate
interests."

Looking at the evidence presented in the case, the district court found that
MHANY provided at trial that: R-M zoning would not have overburdened or
strained public schools; and the Village's interest in reducing traffic from the
levels that existed under the P zone, could have been served by R-M zoning.
The court found that evidence showed that the Village's school could have ac
commodated as many as 565 additional students, and that the R-M zoning
would have, at most, added 156 additional students. The court also found that
elimination of government office buildings (as found previously in the P zone)
and replacement with residential buildings "would have reduced traffic,
whether the residences were single or multi family," and any decrease in traf
fic between R-M and R-T zoning was de minimis as eliminating multi-family
housing only reduced peak traffic by 3%.

Thus, in conclusion, the district court determined that MHANY met its
burden at trial in establishing that the Village's "legitimate, substantial, non
discriminatory interests" in not overburdening public schools and in reducing
traffic could have been served by R-M zoning. The Court confirmed its find
ing that the adoption of R-T zoning instead of R-M zoning had a disparate
impact on minorities in the Village.

See also: Mhany Management, Inc. v. County of Nassau, 819 F.3d 581 (2d
Cir. 2016).

November 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 21Zoning Bulletin



@ 2017 Thomson Reuters10

City of Newton (the "City"). Singer was a Federal Aviation Administration
("FAA")-certified small unmanned aircraft ("drone") pilot and owned and
operated multiple drones in the City. In December 2016, "[i]n order to prevent
nuisances and other disturbances of the enjoyment of both public and private
space," the City adopted an ordinance (the "Ordinance") regulating drone use
in the City. Among other things, the Ordinance imposed registration require
ments on drone owners. It also banned the use of drones: below an altitude of
400 feet over private property without the express permission of the owner of
the private property; over public property without prior permission from the
City; and "beyond the visual line of sight of the Operator."

Singer sued the City, challenging those requirements of the Ordinance. He
argued that those provisions of the Ordinance were preempted by federal
law-namely FAA regulations, which extensively control much of the field of
aviation.

Newton defended the Ordinance, contending that it was not preempted by
federal law because it fell "within an area of law that the FAA expressly carved
out for local governments to regulate." Newton pointed to FAA regulations
that provide that "[c]ertain legal aspects concerning small UAS [i.e.,
unmanned aircraft systems such as drones] use may be best addressed at the
State or local level," including those related to "land use, zoning, privacy,
trespass, and law enforcement operations." (See 81 Fed. Reg. 42063
§ (III)(K)(6).)

DECISION: Judgment for Singer.
The United States District Court, D. Massachusetts, held that those sections

of the City's Ordinance that were challenged by Singer conflicted with federal
regulation of drones and therefore were preempted by FAA regulations.

In so holding, the court explained that the Supremacy Clause of the United
States Constitution provides that "federal laws are supreme." (U.S. Const. art.
VI, cl. 2.) Thus, said the court, federal laws preempt any conflicting state or
local regulations. Where Congress has not expressly preempted an area of law,
federal law will preempt state or local law where field or conflict preemption
is evident. Field preemption, explained the court, "occurs where federal
regulation is so pervasive and dominant that one can infer Congressional intent
to occupy the field." Conflict preemption "arises when compliance with both
state and federal regulations is impossible or if state law obstructs the objec
tives of the federal regulation."

Here, the court determined that since the FAA explicitly contemplated state
or local regulation of pilotless aircraft such as drones, the City'S Ordinance
was not preempted under the principles of field preemption. However, the
court found that the sections of the City Ordinance that were challenged by
Singer did conflict with FAA regulations and were therefore preempted under
the principles of conflict preemption.

Specifically, the court found that the FAA had explicitly indicated "its intent
to be the exclusive regulatory authority for registration of pilotless aircraft."
(See State and Local Regulation of Unmanned Aircraft Systems (UAS) Fact
Sheet) ("FAA UAS Fact Sheet"). Accordingly, the court concluded that the
City's drone registration requirements were preempted.

Zoning BulletinNovember 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 21



In late September, Governor Jerry Brown signed into law 15 bills aimed at
addressing the "affordable housing crises." Among those new laws are: Senate
Bill 35, which requires cities approve "projects that comply with existing zon
ing if not enough housing has been built to keep pace with their state home
building targets"; Assembly Bill 73, which provides that a "city receives
money when it designates a particular community for more housing and then
additional dollars once it starts issuing permits for new homes" provided at
least 20% of the housing is reserved for low- or middle-income residents,
"and projects will have to be granted permits without delay if they meet zon
ing standards"; Senate Bill 540, which "authorizes a state grant or loan for a
local government to do planning and environmental reviews to cover a partic
ular neighborhood," provided the developers in the designated community
reserve a certain percentage of homes for low- and middle-income residents
"and the city's approvals there would be approved without delay"; Assembly
Bill 1505, which allows cities to "once again implement low-income require
ments," forcing developers to set aside a percentage of their projects for low
income residents; Assembly Bill 1397, which "forces local governments to
zone land for [buildable] housing"; Senate Bill 166, which requires cities to

CALIFORNIA

Zoning News from Around the
Nation

CaseNote:

In its decision, the court noted that the remaining, unchallenged portions of the
Ordinance "stand. "

The court also found that the FAA regulations preempted the Ordinance's
ban on drone use below an altitude of 400 feet and over private property
without the express permission of the owner of the private property and over
public property without prior permission from the City. The court found that
those provisions of the Ordinance worked in tandem to "create an essential
ban on drone use within the limits of the [City]," since the FAAmandated that
drone operators keep drones below an altitude of 400 feet from the ground or a
structure (see 14 C.F.R. § 107.51). In other words, given the FAA mandate,
the City's ban on drone use below an altitude of 400 feet essentially eliminated
any drone use in the confines of the City, absent prior permission.

Finally, the court found that the FAAregulations preempted the Ordinance's
ban on drone use "at a distance beyond the visual line of sight of the Operator."
The court pointed to FAA rules regarding aircraft safety and the visual line of
sight for pilotless aircraft operation (see 14 C.F.R. §§ 107.31 and 107.205),
and determined that the Ordinance "limit] ed] the methods of piloting a drone
beyond that which the FAA has already designated, while also reaching into
navigable space."

November 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 21Zoning Bulletin

11~,2017 Thomson Reuters



@:: 2017 Thomson Reuters12

State Legislators are considering a bill that would "require that develop
ments defined as 'substance use and alcohol addiction centers and clinics' go
through local zoning regulations and approvals." The bill is entitled "An Act
to Prevent Over Saturation of Clinical or Educational Programs in Low Income
Neighborhoods Under the Dover Amendment without Local Approval." Cur
rently, under an existing state law known as the "Dover Amendment," "sober
houses and other addiction centers are exempt from zoning requirements if
they can show they offer some educational function." Under the bill, "addic
tion centers would not be exempt from zoning regulations 'without first obtain
ing the approval of the legislative body of such city or tow' in cases where it is
a low[ -]income city or town. . .. "

Source: Massl.ive: www.masslive.com

MASSACHUSETTS

"add additional sites to their housing plans if they approve projects at densities
lower than what local elected officials had anticipated in their proposals"; As
sembly Bill 879, which instructs cities to take steps to shorten the time
developers take to build projects once approved; and Senate Bill 167, As
sembly Bill 678 and Assembly Bill 1515, which make "it easier for developers
to prove a city acted in bad faith when denying a project," and increase a city's
penalty to "$10,000 per unit they rejected."

Source: Los Angeles Times; www.latimes.com

Zoning BulletinNovember 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 21



Mat #41945629i~t:j!.:THOMSON REUTERS·

Standing/Proceedings- Town issues temporary use permit for 16-year
temporary use to continue 7
Fees and Assessments-City imposes a "major roadway assessment" on
subdivision developer 9
Zoning News from Around the Nation 12

in this issue:

2
4

First AmendmentlSigns- Town ordinance bans signs and banners from
town overpasses and within 100-foot buffer zone of town overpasses
RLUIPA-City ordinance prohibits schools in particular zoning district

Zoning Bulletin

November 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 22QUINLAN"



@ 2017 Thomson Reuters2

610 Opperman Drive
P.O. Box 64526

St. Paul, MN 55164-0526
1-800-229-2084

email: west.customerservice@thomsonreuters.com
ISSN 0514-7905

~'2017 Thomson Reuters
All Rights Reserved

Quinlan ™ is a Thomson Reuters brand

i~i;:THOMSON REUTERS·..:::;~..

Thi~4JJblic:ati~ri:was:crQ~t~ .~~.prpVide.•you.·~ifh·a~ur~t~. and a~thoritativein
formation c()ncerning tJje';'$lJbject matter covered; however, thls publication
was not necessarily prepared by persons licensed to practice law in a particu
lar jurisdiction. The publisheris not ell9ag'ed inrendering legal or other profes
sional advice and this publication is 'not a substitute for. the advice of an
attorney. If you require legal or other expert advice, you should seek the ser-
, vices of a competent attorney or other professional.
Zoning Bulletin is published and copyrighted by Thomson Reuters, 610 Op
perman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526. For subscription
information: call (800) 229-2084, or write to West, Credit Order Processing,
620 Opperman Drive, PO Box 64833, St. Paul, MN 55164-9753.
POSTMASTER: Send address changes to Zoning Bulletin, 610 Opperman
Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526.

Citation: Luce v. Town of Campbell, Wisconsin, 872 F.3d 512 (7th Cir. 2017)

Protestors contend ordinance violates their First
Amendment rights

First AmendmentlSigns- Town
ordinance bans signs and banners
from town overpasses and within
100-foot buffer zone of town
overpasses

Zoning BulletinNovember 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 22



\

The Seventh Circuit has jurisdiction over Illinois, Indiana, and Wisconsin.
SEVENTH CIRCUIT (WISCONSIN) (09/22117)-This case addressed the

issue of whether an ordinance banning signs from a highway overpass and
within 100 feet of a highway overpass violated First Amendment rights. The
case also addressed whether such an ordinance required empirical support in
order to be sustained.

The BackgroundlFacts: Members of a local Tea Party group began placing
banners on a highway overpass in the Town of Campbell, Wisconsin (the
"Town"). The banners bore messages such as: "Honk to Impeach Obama." In
response to the banners, the Town enacted an ordinance (the "Ordinance"),
which forbid all signs, flags, and banners-no matter the message conveyed
(other than traffic-control information) on any of the three overpasses in the
Town, or within 100 feet of the end of the overpasses.

Gregory Luce ("Luce") and Nicholas Newman ("Newman"), two members
of the local Tea Party group, challenged the Ordinance. They contended that it
violated their First Amendment rights. They argued that the First Amendment
permitted them to carry or place banners and signs "everywhere" in Town.

The district court disagreed with Luce and Newman. Finding no material is
sues of fact in dispute, and deciding the matter on the law alone, the district
court issued summary judgment in favor of the Town.

Luce and Newman appealed. Among other things, they pointed to the fact
that much of the information presented by the Town as reason for the
Ordinance's enactment had been presented by the Town's former police chief.
The police chief had testified that the Tea Party's banners caused drivers to pull
off the road to take photographs, and produced complaints from drivers about
slow and snarled traffic. The police chief, however, had later resigned in dis
grace after retaliatory actions against Luce for Luce's posting of videos of the
removal of demonstrators from Town overpasses. Luce and Newman now
argued that the former police chief's credibility was undermined, and that
without his evidence, there was no empirical support for the Ordinance.

DECISION: Judgment of United States District Court for the Western
District ofWisconsin affirmed in part, vacated in part, and remanded.

The United States Court of Appeals, Seventh Circuit, explained that the
Ordinance here was a "time, place, and manner restriction" that would survive
the First Amendment challenge if it was shown to serve a "significant
governmental interest" and be "no more extensive than necessary."

Responding to Luce and Newman's argument, the court held that the
Ordinance did not require empirical support in order to be sustained. In other
words, the court held that "record evidence supporting time, place, and manner
restrictions" is not always essential. What is always essential (to sustain a time,
place, and manner regulation, such as the Ordinance here), said the court, is "a
good reason for regulating."

Here, the court determined that no empirical evidence was needed to sup
port the ban on signs from Town overpasses because "the potential benefits of
the rule [could] be appreciated without [it]." The court found that "it does not
take a double-blind empirical study, or a linear regression analysis, to know
that the presence of overhead signs and banners is bound to cause some drivers

"

November 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 22Zoning Bulletin

3@ 2017 Thomson Reuters



Private Christian school alleges that ordinance violates
equal terms provision of RLUIPA

Citation: TREE OF LIFE CHRISTIAN SCHOOLS, Plaintiff, v. THE CITY
OF UPPER ARllNGTON, Defendant., 2017 WL 4563897 (S.D. Ohio 2017)

OHIO (1O/13/17)-This case addressed the issue of whether a city's zoning
ordinance, which prohibited schools from operating in an "ORC Office and
Research District" treated a particular religious school on less than equal terms
with a nonreligious assembly or institution in violation of the Equal Terms pro
vision of the federal Religious Land Use and Institutionalized Persons Act of
2000 ("RLUIPA").

The BackgroundIFacts: In an effort to maximize revenues, the City of Up
per Arlington (the "City") had developed a Master Plan. The purpose of the
Master Plan was "to create opportunities for office development and emphasize
high-paying jobs." In its Master Plan, the City designated an "ORC Office and
Research District." According to the City's zoning ordinance (the Unified
Development Ordinance or "UDO"), the purpose of the "ORC Office and
Research District" was to allow offices and research facilities that would
provide "job opportunities" and "contribute to the City's economic stability."
Permitted uses in the ORC Office and Research District included, among
others: "business and professional offices, research and development, book and
periodical publishing, insurance carriers, corporate data centers, survey
research firms, bank finance and loan offices, outpatient surgery centers,
hospitals." Under the ordinance, conditional uses were also allowed in a small

RLUIPA-City ordinance prohibits
schools in particular zoning district

(£'12017 Thomson Reuters4

to slow down in order to read the sign before passing it." And, per empirical
research, noted the court, the slowing down of some drivers, while others don't,
increases the risk of accidents. Thus, the court concluded that the Town's ban
on overpass signs was rationally justified by the Town's interests in reducing
the incidence of sudden braking on the highway (and thus, accidents).

The court, however, found it hard to find the governmental interest justify
ing the Ordinance's ban of signs within 100 feet of overpasses. "It is hard to
see why signs off the highway, and too small to cause drivers to react, should
be banned," said the court.

Thus, the Seventh Circuit affirmed the judgment of the district court in part,
but vacated it with respect to Luce and Newman's challenge to the 100-foot
buffer zone sign ban. That issue was remanded for further proceedings as to
whether or not it was justified by a Town interest.

See also: Metromedia, Inc. v. City of San Diego, 453 U.S. 490, 101 S. Ct.
2882, 69 L. Ed. 2d 800, 16 Env't. Rep. Cas. (BNA) 1057, 11 Envtl. L. Rep.
20600 (1981).

See also: City of Ladue v. Gil/eo, 512 U.S. 43,114 S. Ct. 2038,129 L. Ed. 2d
36 (1994).

Zoning BulletinNovember 25,2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 22



5@ 2017 Thomson Reuters

Eventually, Tree of Life filed a legal action against the City. Among other
things, Tree of Life alleged that the City'S zoning ordinance violated the Equal
Terms provision of RLUIPA. RLUIPA's "equal terms" provision provides: "No
government shall impose or implement a land use regulation in a manner that
treats a religious assembly or institution on less than equal terms with a
nonreligious assembly or institution." (42 U.S.C.A. § 2000cc(b)(l).)

Finding there were no material issues of fact in dispute, and deciding the
matter on the law alone, the district court issued summary judgment in favor of
the City. The district court concluded that the City's zoning ordinance did not
violate the Equal Terms provision of RLUIPA.

Tree of Life appealed.
The United States Court of Appeal, Sixth Circuit, found that there was a

genuine issue of material fact on the RLUIPA claim. The Sixth Circuit
remanded the matter to the district court to answer the following:

"Are there nonreligious assemblies or institutions to which the court should
compare Tree of Life [ ] because they would fail to maximize income-tax reve
nue, and if so, would those assemblies or institutions be treated equally to Tree
of Life [ ]?"

On remand, Tree of Life argued that there were other nonreligious as
semblies or institutions to which the court should compare Tree of Life
namely daycare centers and partial office uses-that were not treated equally to
Tree of Life because they were allowed uses in the ORC Office and Research
District.

percentage of the gross floor area of buildings in the ORC Office and Research
District. Schools of any type were not permitted in the ORC Office and
Research District. Schools were permitted in residential zones which comprise
95% of the developed land in the City.

Tree of Life Christian School ("Tree of Life") was a private Christian school.
Tree of Life served grades ranging from preschool to 12th grade at different
locations around the Columbus, Ohio metropolitan area. In 2006, Tree of Life
began searching for property that would allow it to expand to accept a greater
number of students. Tree of Life eventually purchased property (the "Prop
erty") located in the ORC Office and Research District in the City. The Prop
erty consisted of the largest office building in the City.

During and after the Property purchase process, Tree of Life sought zoning
allowances from the City. Tree of Life filed an application for a Conditional
Use Permit, which the City denied (including on appeal to the City's Board of
Zoning and Planning and the City Council) because "a private school [was]
neither a permitted use nor a conditional use" in the ORC Office and Research
District. Tree of Life also asked the City to amend the City's zoning ordinance
to allow private religious schools as a permitted use in the ORC Office and
Research District. The City denied that rezoning request. Tree of Life then
submitted a second application for rezoning, asking the City to rezone only its
Property. The City also denied that rezoning request. The City provided several
reasons for denying Tree of Life's rezoning requests, including that "allowing
private religious schools a permitted use in the ORC Office and Research
District would 'significantly diminish expected tax revenues per square foot
due to relatively low salaries and low density of professionals per square foot

,"

November 25,2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 22Zoning Bulletin



@ 2017 Thomson Reuters6

Here, the district court found that Tree of Life's proposed use of the Prop
erty as a school was not consistent with the regulatory purpose of the ORC Of
fice and Research District-to maximize income. Moreover, the court found
that Tree of Life failed to establish a similar nonreligious assembly or institu
tion comparator-one that was permitted in the ORC Office and Research
District and generated less tax revenue than Tree of Life's intended use. The
court rejected Tree of Life's argument that "day cares" and "partial office uses"
were similar comparators that were not treated the same as religious schools.
The district court concluded that daycare centers were not similarly situated to
a religious school-like Tree of Life-with respect to maximizing revenue to
the City. Daycare centers were no longer a permitted use in the ORC Office
and Research District, noted the court, but even if they were still permitted as
an ancillary use to compliment a commercial use, the court found that they
would generate more revenue to the City than Tree of Life. As to Tree of Life's
argument that buildings that were only partly used were similar comparators to
Tree of Life in terms of revenue, the court rejected the argument, saying that
"if a partial use is accepted as a valid comparator, then there can never be a
case in which a city with the goal of maximizing revenue could ever prevail."

Thus, the court concluded that Tree of Life was treated the same as every
other nonreligious assembly or institution, such as secular schools, that do not
maximize tax revenue as they are all prohibited from the ORC Office and

DECISION: City's Motion for Final Judgment granted. Tree of Life's
Motion for Final Judgment denied.

Responding to the Sixth Circuit's inquiry on remand, the United States
District Court, S.D. Ohio, Eastern Division, concluded that the City's zoning
ordinance did not treat Tree of Life on less than equal terms with a nonreligious
assembly or institution. Finding no unequal treatment, the court concluded that
there was no RLUIPA violation.

In so concluding, the district court explained that the equal-terms provision
of RLUIPA "is violated whenever religious land uses are treated worse than
comparable nonreligious ones, whether or not the discrimination imposes a
substantial burden on the religious uses." For Tree of Life to establish an "equal
terms" violation, further explained the court, it would have to establish the fol
lowing four elements: "(1) [Tree of Life was] a religious assembly or institu
tion, (2) subject to a land use regulation, that (3) treat[ed] [Tree of Life] on less
than equal terms, with (4) a nonreligious assembly or institution."

There was no dispute that the first two elements were established. Looking
at the second two elements, the court noted that RLUIPA does not define the
meaning of "equal terms" and that "not all courts are in agreement as to its
meaning." The Sixth Circuit had not specifically adopted a test for evaluating
an equal terms RLUIPA claim. But both parties here had urged the district
court to adopt the test set forth by the Fifth Circuit, and the district court found
that test to "be consistent with the instruction from the Sixth Circuit on
remand." That test requires a court to examine: "the regulatory purpose or zon
ing criterion behind the regulation at issue" and "whether the religious as
sembly or institution is treated as well as every other nonreligious assembly or
institution that is 'similarly situated' with respect to the stated purpose or
criterion."

Zoning BulletinNovember 25,2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 22



7i§ 2017 Thomson Reuters

Citation: Tayback V. Teton County Board of County Commissioners, 2017
WY 114,402 P.3d 984 (")'0.2017)

WYOMING (09/28/17)- This case addressed the issue of whether neigh
bors had standing to challenge a permit issued to a site, despite the fact that
their property was not adjacent to the site. The case also addressed the issue of
whether a county board's issuance of a permit for a temporary use was arbitrary
and capricious where it permitted a 16-year "temporary" use to continue and
the permit applicant conceded the use was intended to continue for another 20
years.

The BackgroundIFacts: Four Shadows, LLC ("Four Shadows") owned a
2.72-acre parcel in the Teton Village (the "Village") in Teton County (the
"County"). That parcel was referred to as "the Granite Ridge site." Since 2001,
Four Shadows had leased the site to contractors working on projects in the
Village. Contractors used the site for various construction storage and staging
needs.

In 2015, Four Shadows' permit for the Granite Ridge site expired. Conse
quently, Four Shadows filed an application with the County for a four-year Ba
sic Use Permit ("BUP") for "temporary use of the property as a construction
storage/staging site." Under the County's Land Development Regulations
("LDRs") temporary uses were permitted through BUPs. Ultimately, the
County Board of County Commissioners (the "Board") approved the BUP with
several conditions, including that the permit would expire in two years, with
any requests for renewal to be heard by the Board.

Christopher and Clare Phillips Tayback (the "Taybacks") owned a residence
on property overlooking Four Shadows' Granite Ridge site. The Taybacks filed
with the district court a petition for review of the BUP.The Taybacks contended

Neighboring property owner challenges permit issuance,
noting that "temporary" use is expected to last up to 20
additional years

Standing/Proceedings- Town
issues temporary use permit for 16-
year temporary use to continue

Research District. "Therefore," said the court, "regardless of what test is ap
plied, there is no nonreligious assembly or institution similarly situated that is
being treated better than [Tree of Life]." Accordingly, the court concluded that
there had been no unequal treatment and no RLUIPA violation, "merely a
neutral application of the City's zoning laws."

See also: Tree of Life Christian Schools v. City of UpperArlington, 823 F.3d
365, 332 Ed. Law Rep. 1 (6th Cir. 2016).

See also: Opulent Life Church v.City of Holly Springs, Miss., 697 F.3d 279,
83 Fed. R. Servo3d 1068 (5th Cir. 2012).

November 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 22Zoning Bulletin



:£·2017Thomson Reuters8

that the County erred in granting the BUP to Four Shadows. Specifically, the
Taybacks argued that BUPs permitted temporary uses, and it was clear that
Four Shadows' use of the site for construction storage/staging was not
temporary.

The Board claimed that the Taybacks did not have standing (i.e., the legal
right) to contest the BUP.

The district court ruled that the Taybacks had standing, but affirmed the
Board's decision to grant the BUP to Four Shadows.

The Taybacks appealed.
DECISION: Judgment of district court affirmed.
The Supreme Court of Wyoming first determined that the Taybacks did have

standing to challenge the issuance of the BUP despite the fact that the
Taybacks' property was not directly adjacent to the Granite Ridge site. The
court explained that under Wyoming law, "any person aggrieved or adversely
affected in fact," can petition for judicial review of a final agency decision.
Specifically, with regard to appeals of zoning and land use matters, the court
explained that "an aggrieved or adversely affected person having standing to
sue is a person who has a legally recognizable interest that is or will be affected
by the action of the zoning authority in question." In other words, if the
Taybacks could claim an interest that exceeded the general public's interest,
they would have standing to maintain their appeal as persons "aggrieved and
adversely affected in fact by the Board's decision to issue the [BUP]."

The court found that although the Taybacks' property was not directly
adjacent to the Granite Ridge site, it was "near" the site, and the operations at
the site interfered with the Taybacks' scenic views. The court found this was a
"valid harm to establish standing."

Next, the court rejected the Taybacks' claims that the Board had erred when
it issued the BUP.Again, the Taybacks had argued that the Board had erred in
granting the BUP because, under the LDR, BUPs permitted temporary uses,
and it was clear that Four Shadows' use of the site for construction storage/
staging was not temporary. The court looked to the LDR's definition of
"temporary use," and found it defined as "a use established for a fixed period of
time." The court found that the Board's grant of a two-year BUP to Four
Shadows established a right to use the site for a fixed (definite) period of two
years. As such, the court concluded that the Board, in issuing the BUP, met the
LDR's definition of "temporary use." Thus, while all parties agreed that there
would be a need to use the property as a construction staging site well into the
future, and potentially for up to 20 years, Four Shadows' right to use the prop
erty for that purpose was limited to a temporary two-year permit period. The
court therefore concluded that the Board's interpretation of the LDR's
"temporary use" was "not contrary to the law," and that the BUP had been
properly issued.

See also: Hoke v.Moyer, 865 P.2d 624 ("')'0. 1993).
See also: Burgess v. U.S., 553 U.S. 124, 128 S. Ct. 1572, 170 L. Ed. 2d 478,

30AL.R. Fed. 2d 737 (2008).

Zoning BulletinNovember 25,2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 22



Developer contends city lacked state statutory authority to
impose road assessment as a condition of subdivision
approval

Citation: Harstad v. City o/Woodbury, 2017 WL 4104728 (Minn. Ct. App.
2017)

MINNEAPOLIS (09/18/17)-This case addressed the issue of whether a
statutory city lacked express or implied statutory authority to impose a major
roadway assessment as a condition for subdivision approval.

The BackgroundIFacts: Martin Harstad ("Harstad") sought to develop 77
acres in the City of Woodbury (the "City") into a 183-home residential com
munity called "Bailey Park." Harstad submitted a subdivision application to
the City. Some time later, the City sent Harstad a memorandum stating the
proposed area and connection charges for the Bailey Park subdivision, includ
ing a "proposed" major roadway assessment ("MRA") of $1,389,444.

The City's resolution provided that a new residential development "pays its
own way" and "all associated costs" for "public infrastructure" will "be the
sole responsibility of the developing property owner." The City's resolution
directed that roadway improvement costs "will normally be collected at the
time a property develops per a negotiated major roadway contribution," also
called a "major roadway assessment." The resolution also set out a formula to
calculate the MRA, dividing the total expected cost of improvements by the net
developable acreage in each phase to arrive at a per-acre fee. Based on the
MRA formula, the City estimated that phase-two developers must pay $20,230
per acre to fund necessary road improvements.

Harstad objected to paying the MRA. Harstad filed a legal action against the
City. Among other things, he asked the court to declare that the MRA was un
authorized by Minnesota law. Specifically, he maintained that, the City, as a

Fees and Assessments-City
imposes a "major roadway
assessment" on subdivision
developer

CaseNote:

The Taybacks had also alleged that the Board acted arbitrarily and capriciously in is
suing the BUP because it failed to consider alternative sites for Four Shadows'
construction storage/staging operation. The court found that the County Master Plan
and LDR did not require the Board to consider, or makefindings about, alternative sites
for construction storage/staging. Thus, without some authority requiring the Board to
consider alternative sites, the court could not say that the Board acted contrary to law
or arbitrarily and capriciously infailing to do so.

9'~2017 Thomson Reuters

November 25,2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 22Zoning Bulletin



:£ 2017 Thomson Reuters10

statutory city-"which has no inherent powers beyond those expressly
conferred by statute or implied as necessary in aid of those power which have
been expressly conferred"-lacked express or implied authority under Minne
sota statutory law-Minn. Stat. § 462.358, subd. 2a-to impose a road assess
ment as a condition for its approval of a developer's subdivision application.

The City countered that it did have such express authority to impose the
MRA under the plain language of Minn. Stat. § 462.358, subd. 2a.

Section 462.358, subdivision la, provides that "a municipality may by
ordinance" regulate the subdivision of land to, among other things, facilitate
"adequate provision for transportation." (Minn. Stat. § 462.358, subd. la.)
Subdivision 2a states, in relevant part that such regulation may address, among
other things, "streets, [and] roads .... " and "may permit the municipality to
condition its approval on the construction and installation of [among other
things] streets ... or, in lieu thereof, on the receipt by the municipality of a
cash deposit, . . . or other financial security . . . sufficient to assure the
municipality that the utilities and improvements will be constructed or installed
. . .. " The statute further provides that when such conditions required by the
municipality for approval have been satisfied, "the municipality has 30 days to
release and return to the applicant any and all financial securities tied to the
requirements." (Minn. Stat. § 462.358, subd. 2a.)

The City appeared to claim, and Harstad did not disagree that the MRA was
a regulation adopted pursuant to city ordinance under Minn. Stat. § 462.358,
subds. 1a, 2a. Harstad, however, argued that, while subdivision 2a provided
municipal authority to condition subdivision approval on a developer's agree
ment to fund roadway improvements within subdivision boundaries and its
perimeter, subdivision 2a did not authorize an MRA to pay for off-site road
improvements. Thus, Harstad argued that the MRA sought by the City for the
Bailey Park subdivision was unauthorized by Minnesota law and
unenforceable.

The district court concluded that the MRA was a development "impact fee"
and that the City lacked statutory authority under Minn. Stat. § 462.358, subd.
2a, to impose the MRA as a condition of approving a developer's subdivision
application. The district court declared the MRA unenforceable. Finding no
material issues of fact in dispute, and deciding the matter on the law alone, the
court issued summary judgment in favor of Harstad on the MRA claim.

The City appealed.
DECISION: Judgment of district court affirmed.
The Court of Appeals of Minnesota held that the City lacked express or

implied authority under Minn. Stat. § 462.358, subd. 2a, to impose the MRA as
a condition of approval of Harstad's subdivision application.

In so holding, the court explained that (as Harstad had pointed out), as a
statutory city, the City had "no inherent powers beyond those expressly
conferred by statute or implied as necessary in aid of those power which have
been expressly conferred." Thus, the court looked at the language of the statute
and the legislature's intent. The court found that subdivision 2a was "unambigu
ous" and "[did] not by its plain language authorize the [C]ity to condition
subdivision approval on payment of a road assessment." In fact, the court found
that subdivision 2a "does not authorize collection of any type of assessment."

Zoning BulletinNovember 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 22



11':£" 2017 Thomson Reuters

Harstad had also brought an inverse condemnation claim against the City, arguing that
the MRA amounted to a temporary regulatory taking. The court dismissed the claim as
moot because the City had not denied the Bailey Park subdivision application or
imposed the MRA, so nothing had been "taken."

CaseNote:

Rather, it found that "subdivision 2a authorizes city planning." "By its plain
language," concluded the court, "subdivision 2a allows the [C]ity to condition
subdivision approval on the construction or installation of road improvements,
or on the receipt 'of a cash deposit, ... or other financial security' sufficient
'to assure' the city that road construction or installation will be completed."

While the City had argued that the MRA was "like a 'cash deposit' or 'other
financial security,' " the court disagreed. Looking at the dictionary definitions
of "cash deposit" and "assessment," the court concluded that subdivision 2a al
lows a city to require a "cash deposit," which, "based on the term's common
and ordinary meaning, is money held by a municipality and must be preserved
or returned 'in kind.' " In fact, subdivision 2a expressly required "a city to hold
the cash deposit or other financial security until completion of road construc
tion (or other improvements) on which approval is conditioned, after which the
deposit or security is returned." But, noted the court, "subdivision 2a does not
authorize a road assessment."

Having concluded that subdivision 2a did not expressly authorize the City to
impose the MRA, the court next considered whether subdivision 2a implied the
City was authorized to impose a road assessment as necessary to aid expressly
granted powers. The court found that it did not. The court noted that the
legislature had specifically authorized special assessments as the municipal
funding mechanism for road improvements. (See Minn. Stat. § 429.021, subd.
1(1) (providing express municipal authority to improve streets) and Minn. Stat.
§ 429.051 (stating that the cost of any improvement "may be assessed upon
property benefited by the improvement").) Thus, the court determined that "no
funding mechanism need be implied to effectuate the legislative grant of
authority to undertake road improvements." Further, the court noted that the
legislature has authorized municipalities to assess water- and sewer-connection
charges against developers to fund public water and sewer improvements made
necessary by development. (See Minn. Stat. § 444.075, subd. 3 (stating that cit
ies "may impose just and equitable charges for the use" of and connections
with waterworks, sanitary sewer, and storm water systems).) The court
reasoned that the legislature's failure to include road charges under the same
statutory section was not the result of "legislative oversight" because it passed
"statutory provisions expressly establishing special assessments as the mecha
nism by which cities are empowered to finance road improvements." Thus, the
court concluded that subdivision 2a is not a source of implied authority for the
city to impose the MRA.

In sum, the court concluded that the MRA imposed on Harstad was "invalid
and unenforceable because the [C]ity lacked express or implied authority under
Minn. Stat. § 462.358, subd. 2a, to impose the MRA as a condition of approv
ing a developer's subdivision application."

See also: Country Joe, Inc. v. City of Eagan, 560 N.W.2d681 (Minn. 1997).

November 25,2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 22Zoning Bulletin



The Bellevue City Council has voted "to permanently ban safe injection
sites for illegal drugs," effective October 26, 2017. In passing Ordinance No.
6376, the City Council amended Bellevue's land use code to impose a "prohi
bition on the sites, locations or other uses or activities designed to provide a lo
cation for people to consume illicit drugs intravenously or by other means,
throughout the city." Those who support safe injection sites say they "reduce
drug-related deaths and health risks by preventing overdoses, the transmission
of viral infections,. . . and provide access to treatment and social services
. . . [and] improve public safety by reducing the frequency people use in
public."

Source: Bellevue Reporter; www.bellevuereporter.com

WASHINGTON

g, 2017 Thomson Reuters12

Separate bills introduced in the state House and Senate would reportedly
"prohibit local governments from enacting zoning ordinances that ban or re
strict owners from renting out homes or condominiums for less than 28 days at
a time." Opponents of the bills argue they would give short-term rentals "an
unfair advantage over existing hotels, allow unregulated rentals to clog resi
dential neighborhoods and prohibit local governments from enacting zoning
rules that meet their unique needs."

Source: The Detroit News; www.detroitnews.com

MICHIGAN

Governor Jerry Brown has vetoed Senate Bill 649, which would have
"established a uniform permitting process for the small-cell wireless equip
ment [(i.e., 5G technology)] on utility poles while fixing rates localities charged
to lease their infrastructure." Reportedly, municipalities had opposed the bill,
arguing it would limit local authority and "be a handout to the telecom
industry."

Source: StateScoop; http://statescoop.com

CALIFORNIA

Zoning News from Around the
Nation

CaseNote:

The court also rejected Harstad's claims that his subdivision application was automati
cally approved by law because the City hadfailed to approve or deny it within a 60-day
period of time. The court found it undisputed that the subdivision application remained
"incomplete, " and therefore the time periods for automatic approval under Minn. Stat.
§§15.99, subd. 2(a), and §462.358, subd. 3b, had not begun to run.

Zoning BulletinNovember 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 22



Mat #41945632i~~~~ THOMSON REUTERS·

Validity of Zoning Regulation-City adopts ordinance granting limited im-
munity from prosecution as public nuisance to marijuana dispensaries 2
Rezoning/Vested Rights-After corporation obtains conditional site plan
approval to build self-storage facility within a block of a school, city
changes zoning to prohibit such facilities within 250 feet of schools
BiliboardslEminent Domain-City denies company's billboard relocation
request 5
Variance/Conditions-Village grants restaurant owner's requested parking
variance, with conditions dictating hours of operation and requiring
valet parking 7
Zoning News from Around the Nation 10

in this issue:

Zoning Bulletin

December 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 23QUINLAN'"



610 Opperman Drive
P.O. Box 64526

81. Paul, MN 55164-0526
1-800-229-2084

email: west.customerservice@thomsonreuters.com
ISSN 0514-7905

·~2017Thomson Reuters
All Rights Reserved

Quinlan™ is a Thomson Reuters brand

&; 2017 Thomson Reuters2

8490;' fax (978) :':a~()QO .or;'Wes,t'~.'Copy~!g~t~e~~ces 'at"Q10 Opperrnan
Drive, Eagan, ~N 5512~.;ifax(691J687~755·~:>Pleaseoutline thesJl9cifiC.ma
terial involved, Jhe nur:nt?~r_ofcopiesyou wi_shto distribUte and the purpose or
format of the use. . .' _.

This publication was created to proviQeyou with accurate and authoritative in
formation concerning the subject matter covered; however, this publication
was not necessarily prepared by persons licensed to practice law in a particu
lar jurisdiction. The publisher is not engaged in rendering legal or other profes
sional advice and this publication is not a substitute for the advice of an
attorney. If you require legal or other expert advice, you should seek the ser
vices of a competent attorney or other professional.
Zoning Bulletin is published and copyrighted by Thomson Reuters, 610 Op
perman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526. For subscription
information: call (800) 229-2084, or write to West, Credit Order Processing,
620 Opperman Drive, PO Box 64833, St. Paul, MN 55164-9753.
POSTMASTER: Send address changes to Zoning Bulletin, 610 Opperman
Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526.

Marijuana dispensary owner argues new ordinance is an
illegal ex post facto law, making previously legal activity,
retroactively illegal

Validity of Zoning Regulation-City
adopts ordinance granting limited
immunity from prosecution as
public nuisance to marijuana
dispensaries

Zoning BulletinDecember 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 23



3& 2017 Thomson Reuters

Citation: City of Vallejo v. NCORP4, Inc., 15 Cal. App. 5th 1078, 223 Cal.
Rptr. 3d 740 (Ist Dist. 2017)

CALIFORNIA (09/29/17)- This case addressed the issue of whether a city
ordinance, which granted limited immunity from prosecution as public
nuisances to marijuana dispensaries that consistently paid businesses taxes
and met other requirements, improperly amended an earlier city ordinance,
which placed a business license tax on marijuana businesses, by making activ
ity that was legal at the time committed (or at least subject to very limited
penalties) suddenly and retroactively illegal (or subject to greater and much
different penalties).

The BackgroundIFacts: California laws permit medicinal and recreational
use of marijuana. While those laws permit the use of marijuana, they do not
"mandate that local governments authorize, allow, or accommodate the exis
tence of' marijuana dispensaries. Nor do they preempt "the authority of Cali
fornia cities and counties, under their traditional land use and police powers,
to allow, restrict, limit, or entirely exclude facilities that distribute medical
marijuana, and to enforce such policies by nuisance actions."

The City of Vallejo (the "City") has several ordinances affecting the opera
tion of medical marijuana dispensaries. The City's zoning ordinance prohibits
all uses not expressly permitted, and declares unpermitted uses to be "a public
nuisance." The City's zoning ordinance does not recognize marijuana dispen
saries as a permitted or designated land use, and, therefore, such a use is an
unpermitted nuisance.

Despite the fact that marijuana dispensary uses were not permitted under
the City's zoning ordinance, they nonetheless were "proliferating." Noting a
lack of financial resources to enforce land use restrictions, the City attempted
to take a first step of "taxing and regulating these businesses." In 2011, City
voters approved "Measure C" which placed a business license tax on
marijuana businesses. In 2015, the City adopted Ordinance No. 1715, which
provides that medical marijuana dispensaries are a public nuisance but grants
immunity from prosecution to those dispensaries that have consistently paid
business taxes and meet other requirements.

NCORP4, Inc. ("NCORP4") was a nonprofit corporation operating a medi
cal marijuana dispensary in the City. The City denied NCORP4's request for
limited immunity under Ordinance No. 1715 because NCORP4 had not paid
most of its marijuana business taxes due under Measure C. In its application
for limited immunity, NCORP4 offered to pay delinquent taxes and penalties.
The City denied NCORP4's application and then sought to enjoin NCORP4's
operations.

In May 2016, the City sued to enjoin operation of NCORP4's medical
marijuana dispensary. The trial court denied the City's requested injunction.
The court found that Ordinance No. 1715 improperly amended Measure C by
increasing the penalty for nonpayment of taxes. The court determined that
Ordinance No. 1715 amounted to "in essence an ex post facto law, making
activity that was legal at the time committed (or at least subject to very limited
penalties) suddenly and retroactively illegal (or subject to greater and much
different penalties.)"

The City appealed. The City contended that it could lawfully preclude

December 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 23Zoning Bulletin



!~-, 2017 Thomson Reuters4

operation of a medical marijuana dispensary that had a history of unpaid taxes.
The City argued that Ordinance No. 1715 did not, as the trial court had held,
impermissibly amend Measure C's tax provisions to increase the penalty for
nonpayment of taxes but simply "limit[ ed] the many aspirants to sell medical
marijuana in the city to a manageable number by preferring those who have
demonstrated a willingness and ability to comply with local law by paying the
Measure C tax when the [C]ity enforced it. . . and to continue paying taxes
as a condition of immunized operation."

DECISION: Judgment of Superior Court reversed, and matter re
manded with directions to issue the City's requested preliminary
injunction.

The Court of Appeal, First District, Division 3, California, agreed with the
City. The court said that "[l]ocal governments may rationally limit medical
marijuana dispensaries to those already in operation and compliant with prior
law as past compliance shows a willingness to follow the law, which suggests
future lawful behavior." Thus, the court characterized Ordinance No. 1715 as
"essentially a grandfather provision." The court determined that a marijuana
dispensary's timely payment of business taxes provided the City "with a
rational basis to conclude that the dispensary will continue to act in a law
abiding manner." Since NCORP4 did not pay its business taxes, the court
concluded that the City reasonably denied NCORP4 immunity to continue
operations.

Addressing the NCORP4's argument and the trial court's conclusion-that
Ordinance No. 1715 impermissibly amended Measure .C as an ex post facto
law, the appellate court noted that the constitutional prohibition on ex post
facto laws applied only to criminal statutes and was inapplicable to local ordi
nances regulating the operation of medical marijuana dispensaries. Moreover,
the court concluded that Ordinance No. 1715 did not amend Measure C's tax
provisions retrospectively, but rather was a separate ordinance that used past
compliance with Measure C as one of several standards for granting dispensa
ries immunity from prosecution as a public nuisance.

See also: 420 Caregivers, LLC v. City of Los Angeles, 219 Cal. App. 4th
1316, 163 Cal. Rptr. 3d 17 (2d Dist. 2012).

See also: City of Riverside v. Inland Empire Patients Health and Wellness
Center, Inc., 56 Cal. 4th 729, 156 Cal. Rptr. 3d 409, 300 P.3d 494, 28 A.D.
Cas. (BNA) 144 (2013).

Zoning BulletinDecember 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 23



Citation: Siena Corporation v. Mayor and City Council of Rockville Mary
land, 873 F.3d456 (4th Cir. 2017)

The Fourth Circuit has jurisdiction over Maryland, North Carolina, South
Carolina, Virginia, and West Virginia.

FOURTH CIRCUIT (MARYLAND) (l0/13/17)-This case addressed the
issue of whether a property owner had a vested right under the Due Process
Clause of the United States Constitution in building a self-storage facility.

The BackgroundIFacts: In 2013, Siena Corporation and Rockville North
Land LLLP (collectively, "Siena") sought to build an "ezStorage" self-storage
facility in the City of Rockville, Maryland (the "City"). The property on which
construction of the self-storage facility was proposed was zoned "Light
Industrial." At the time Siena purchased the property, that zoning designation
allowed for its use as the site of a self-storage facility.

City residents opposed the proposed ezStorage facility, contending that it
posed a safety threat to the students of the local elementary school, which was
located down the block from Siena's property. Residents expressed fear that
the ezStorage facility would increase traffic, and that the storage facility might
be used to store "illegal or hazardous materials and therefore invite crime into
the area." The Residents proposed that the City amend its zoning ordinance to
prohibit self-storage facilities within 250 feet of school zones. Eventually, in
February 2015, the City council adopted such a zoning ordinance amendment.
In effect, the zoning ordinance amendment prohibited self-storage facilities
like Siena's from being built within 250 feet of lots with public schools.

While the zoning text amendment was being considered, and before it was
adopted, Siena obtained from the City's Planning Commission conditional site
plan approval for its proposed ezStorage facility. Final approval of the site
plan was "subject to full compliance with" 19 conditions listed in the
conditional approval, including obtainment of various permits. Siena did not

5© 2017 Thomson Reuters

Corporation contends it has a vested right to construct
the self-storage facility, but city argues there was no
vested right because corporation failed to comply with
conditions in site plan approval or obtain building permit

RezoningNested Rights-After
corporation obtains conditional site
plan approval to build self-storage
facility within a block of a school,
city changes zoning to prohibit
such facilities within 250 feet of
schools

December 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 23Zoning Bulletin



@ 2017 Thomson Reuters6

satisfy all of the conditions on its site plan approval, and it didn't apply for a
building permit.

After passage of the zoning amendment prohibiting self-storage facilities
within 250 feet of schools, Siena was unable to build the ezStorage facility on
its property. Siena sued the City. It alleged, among other things, that the zon
ing amendment violated the substantive due process guarantee of the
Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution. The Fourteenth
Amendment provides, in relevant part, that no state shall "deprive any person
of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law." Siena maintained that
it had a protected property interest in using its property to develop an ezStor
age facility.

The district court dismissed Siena's due process claim. The court held that
Siena lacked a protected property interest in the ezStorage facility construc
tion because it had not applied for a building permit.

Siena appealed.
DECISION: Judgment of district court affirmed.
The United States Court of Appeals, Fourth Circuit, held that Siena did not

have a vested right in building a self-storage facility that was protected by the
Due Process Clause.

In so holding, the court explained that to succeed on its substantive due
process claim, Siena had to establish: (1) that it possessed a "cognizable prop
erty interest, rooted in state law"; and (2) that the City Council in adopting the
zoning amendment deprived it of this property interest in a manner "so far be
yond the outer limits of legitimate governmental action that no process could
cure the deficiency." The court determined that Siena "ha[d] not cleared either
hurdle."

To have a "cognizable property interest," requires a "legitimate claim of
entitlement," said the court. Looking at Maryland law, the court found that:

"in order to obtain a 'vested right' in the existing zoning use which will be
constitutionally protected against a subsequent change in the zoning ordinance
prohibiting or limiting that use, the owner must (1) obtain a permit or occupancy
certificate where required by the applicable ordinance and (2) must proceed under
that permit or certificate to exercise it on the land involved so that the neighbor
hood may be advised that the land is being devoted to that use."

Here, since Siena had failed to satisfy either of those requirements-in that
it never applied for a building permit or satisfied the conditions of its site plan
approval for its proposed self-storage facility, the court concluded that it did
not have a vested right in the self-storage facility use.

Moreover, the court found that "[e]ven if Siena had a property interest here,
the enactment of the zoning text amendment would still fall short of a substan
tive due process violation." The court said that state deprivation of a protected
property interest violates substantive due process only if it is "so arbitrary and
irrational, so unjustified by any circumstance or governmental interest, as to
be literally incapable of avoidance by any pre-deprivation procedural protec
tions or of adequate rectification by any post-deprivation state remedies." In
other words, the state action must be "conscience shocking, in a constitutional
sense," lacking any "conceivable rational relationship to the exercise of the

Zoning BulletinDecember 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 23



7f: 2017 Thomson Reuters

Citation: Outfront Media, LLC v. Salt Lake City Corporation, 2017 UT 74,
2017 WL 4783908 (Utah 2017)

UTAH (l0/23/17)-This case addressed the issue of whether, under Utah's
Billboard Compensation Statute (Utah Code section 1O-9a-513), the denial of
a billboard relocation request by a municipality constitutes a physical taking
of the billboard, which requires compliance with the eminent domain

Billboard company argues denial was "illegal" because
denial amounted to eminent domain taking under state's
Billboard Compensation Statute and city failed to comply
with statutory eminent domain procedural requirements

Billboards/Eminent Domain-City
denies company's billboard
relocation request

Case Note:

Siena had also brought an equal protection claim under the Fourteenth Amendment.
With regard to that claim, the Equal Protection Clause provides that no state shall
deny to any person within its jurisdiction "the equal protection of the laws." Siena
suggested that the zoning text amendment uniquely burdened its property in a
discriminatory manner. The district court rejected that claim, concluding that the zon
ing text amendment "was rationally based, given the residents' concerns that self
storage facilities near school could attract crime and traffic that would endanger
students. " The Fourth Circuit agreed. It also noted that Siena could not show that
Siena had been intentionally treated differently than others similarly situated since
Siena failed to identify a similarly situated competitor. Moreover, said the court, even
such a similarly situated competitor existed, "the zoning text amendment would apply
to it in the exact same way it applie[d] to Siena."

state's traditional police power." Here, the court found that the zoning amend
ment to prohibit self-storage facilities within 250 feet of schools did not shock
the conscience as it was an attempt to protect students from the hazards that
the City Council believe to be associated with self-storage facilities: increased
crime, traffic, and illicit drugs.

See also: L.M. Everhart Const., Inc. v. Jefferson County Planning Com 'n, 2
F.3d 48 (4th Cir. 1993).

See also: Sylvia Development Corp. v. Calvert County, Md., 48 F.3d 810
(4th Cir. 1995)).

See also: A Helping Hand, LLC v.Baltimore County, MD, 515 F.3d 356, 20
A.D. Cas. (BNA) 519 (4th Cir. 2008).

December 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 23Zoning Bulletin



The district court agreed with the City's arguments, and upheld the City's
denial of CBS's relocation request.

@ 2017 Thomson Reuters8

procedures of Utah's Eminent Domain Statutes (Utah Code sections 78B-6-
501 through 522).

The BackgroundIFacts: CBS Outdoor, LLC ("CBS") owned a billboard
in Salt Lake City (the "City"). Its billboard was located on land that CBS
leased from Corner Property, L.C. ("Corner Property"). In the fall of 2014,
CBS's lease from Corner Property was about to expire, so CBS sought to
relocate its billboard. CBS submitted a billboard relocation request to the City.
The City'S mayor made the decision to deny CBS's request to relocate the
billboard.

CBS appealed that denial. Among other things, CBS argued that the denial
was "illegal" because, in denying CBS's billboard request, the City "invoked
the power of eminent domain to effect a physical taking of CBS's billboard
without complying with the procedural requirements that constrain the use of
eminent domain." In particular, CBS asserted that under Utah's Billboard
Compensation Statute (Utah Code section 10-9a-513), the denial of a billboard
relocation request by a municipality constitutes a physical taking of the
billboard, which requires compliance with the eminent domain procedures of
Utah's Eminent Domain Statutes (Utah Code sections 78B-6-501 through
522). CBS contended that the City'S denial of its billboard request illegally
failed to comply with the eminent domain procedures of Utah's Eminent
Domain Statutes, which provide that "[p]roperty may not be taken by a politi
cal subdivision of the state unless the governing body of the political subdivi
sion approves the taking." Here, the "governing body" was the City Council,
and the City Council did not participate in the decision to deny CBS's reloca
tion request; the decision was made by the City's mayor alone.

The City maintained, however, that the Eminent Domain Statutes do not
apply to billboard relocation denials. Pointing to the texts of the Billboard
Relocation Statute and the Billboard Compensation Statute, the City noted
that neither incorporated the Eminent Domain Statutes by explicit textual
reference.

Utah's Billboard Relocation Statute provides, in relevant part, that a
municipality may agree to relocation of a billboard. The Billboard Compensa
tion Statute provides, in pertinent part that "[a] municipality is considered to
have initiated the acquisition of a billboard structure by eminent domain if the
municipality prevents a billboard owner from. . . relocating a billboard into
any commercial, industrial, or manufacturing zone within the municipality's
boundaries, if [certain spacing requirements are met]; and ... the billboard
owner has submitted a written request under Subsection 1O-9a-5U(3)(c); and
. . . the municipality and billboard owner are unable to agree, within the time
provided in Subsection 10-9a-511(3)(c), to a mutually acceptable location[.]"
In other words, the Billboard Relocation Statute permits a municipality to
agree to a billboard relocation request that would otherwise be prohibited by
the city's zoning ordinance. However, if the city does not agree to a relocation
request, and that request meets certain spacing requirements (which CBS'
request here did), the city is "considered" under the Billboard Compensation
Statute to have "initiated the acquisition of the billboard structure by eminent
domain."

Zoning BulletinDecember 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 23



CBS also challenged the denial of its relocation request as violating the City's
Billboard Ordinance, and as being arbitrary and capricious. The appellate court
rejected both of these arguments. The court found that the City's Billboard Ordinance
did not forbid the City from denying a billboard relocation request that fit within the
spacing requirements of the Billboard Compensation Statute (as witn CBS' request
here). And, the court found that the City mayor's decision to deny CBS' billboard
relocation request was not arbitrary and capricious because it furthered the mayor's
established goal of achieving a net reduction in the number of billboards in the area.

Case Note:

9:£ 2017 Thomson Reuters

CBS appealed.
DECISION: Judgment of district court affirmed.
The Supreme Court of Utah also agreed with the City's arguments. The

court held that the procedural requirements of eminent domain mandated by
Utah's Eminent Domain Statutes (i.e., that property could not be taken by the
City unless the City Council approved the taking) did not apply because,
"under the Billboard Compensation Statute, relocation denials are merely
'considered' to be the acquisition of a billboard structure by eminent domain
for compensation purposes, but th[ose] denials do not actually involve the
formal exercise of the eminent domain power and the concomitant procedures
the legislature has prescribed to restrain the exercise of that power." In other
words, the court read the Billboard Compensation Statute to treat a denial
under the Billboard Relocation Statute (such as the City's denial of CBS's
billboard relocation request, here) as "an acquisition for compensation
purposes only, even though the denial itself [was] not an acquisition."

In sum, the court concluded that Utah's Eminent Domain Statutes "do not
apply to actions that may trigger the Billboard Compensation Statute." The
court interpreted the Billboard Compensation Statute to mean that, by denying
billboard relocation requests that meet the spacing requirements (as the City
had done here with CBS), the City is "considered to have initiated the acquisi
tion of a billboard structure by eminent domain, solely for purposes of just
compensation as dictated in that section." Because "considered" in that context
means "to look upon (as)," the court concluded that billboard relocation deni
als that meet the spacing requirements are "only to be looked upon as acquisi
tions by eminent domain, though in fact they are not."

December 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 23Zoning Bulletin



£' 2017 Thomson Reuters10

Citation: Bonejish Grill, LLC v. Zoning Bd. of Appeals of Village of
Rockville Centre, 153AD.3d 1394,61 N.Y.S.3d 623 (2d Dep't 2017)

NEW YORK (09/27/17)-This case addressed the issue of whether condi
tions imposed on a parking variance were reasonable.

The BackgroundlFacts: Bonefish Grill, LLC ("Bonefish Grill") leased
property (the "Property") in the Village of Rockville Centre (the "Village"). In
2013, Bonefish Grill sought to demolish the existing structure on the Property
and to build a 5,400 square foot restaurant. Based on the square footage of the
proposed structure, the Village's Zoning Code required Bonefish Grill to have
54 off-street parking spaces. The Property did not have any off-street parking
spaces.

Bonefish Grill applied for a parking variance. The parking variance ap
plication relied on a license agreement, which Bonefish Grill had with the
adjacent property, allowing Bonefish Grill access to that adjacent property's
40 exclusive parking spaces between 4:00 p.m. and 12:30 a.m. on Mondays
through Fridays.

The Village's Zoning Board of Appeals (the "ZBA") granted the parking
variance with specific conditions, including that the restaurant's operating
hours be restricted to 4:00 p.m. and 12:30 a.m. on Mondays through Fridays,
and that valet parking be mandatory. The ZBA also granted Bonefish Grill's
application for a substantial occupancy permit, imposing the same conditions.

Bonefish Grill challenged the conditions imposed, asking the court to annul
them. The court annulled the conditions that restricted the restaurant's operat
ing house and required valet parking.

The ZBA appealed.
DECISION: Judgment of Supreme Court reversed in relevant part.
The Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Second Department, New York,

held that the conditions imposed on Bonefish Grill's parking variance were
reasonable.

The appellate court explained that a zoning board "may, where appropriate,
impose reasonable conditions and restrictions as are directly related to and
incidental to the proposed use of the property, and aimed at minimizing the
adverse impact to an area that might result from the grant of a variance or

Restaurant seeks to annul conditions, arguing they are
unreasonable

Variance/Conditions-Village grants
restaurant owner's requested
parking variance, with conditions
dictating hours of operation and
requiring valet parking

Zoning BulletinDecember 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 23



11'~2017 Thomson Reuters

The Montgomery County Council passed legislation that restricts the place
ment of country inns in certain residential zones. While current zoning law
designates "rural areas" as locations for country inns, the recently passed mea
sure gives more specificity, allowing for a country inn to be located in certain
residential zones "only on properties that border a more rural zone." An
amendment to the bill creates an exemption to the location restrictions for
country inns located in a building that the county has deemed historic.

Source: Bethesda Magazine; www.bethesdamagazine.com

MARYLAND

The San Francisco Board of Supervisors in considering legislation "that
would make it easier to establish specially protected cultural districts in the
city." The bill's aim is to "help slow the tide of gentrification in traditional
ethnic enclaves." The new bill defines a cultural district as a neighborhood
that: "Embodies a unique cultural heritage because it contains a concentration
of cultural and historic assets or culturally significant enterprise, arts, services,
or businesses, or because a significant portion of its residents or people who
spend time in the area or location are members of a specific cultural, com
munity, or ethnic group."

Source: Curbed San Francisco; https:llstcurbed.com

CALIFORNIA

Zoning News from Around the
Nation

special permit." The court further explained that if the imposed conditions are
"unreasonable or improper," they may be annulled although the variance is
upheld.

Here, the appellate court concluded that the ZBA's conditions on Bonefish
Grill's parking variance, requiring valet parking and limiting the hours of
operation to coincide with the hours of access to the 40 off-street parking
spaces granted in the license agreement, were "proper because the conditions
related directly to the use of the land and were intended to protect the neighbor
ing commercial properties from the potential adverse effects of [Bonefish
Grill's] operation, such as the anticipated increase in traffic congestion and
parking problems." The court found that the "ZBA's rationale was supported
by empirical and testimonial evidence," including the testimony of local store
owners and the ZBA members own personal knowledge of parking demands
in the area of the Property.

See also: St. Onge v.Donovan, 71N.Y.2d507, 527 N.Y.S.2d 721, 522 N.E.2d
1019 (1988).

See also: Martin v. Brookhaven Zoning Bd. of Appeals, 34 A.D.3d 811, 825
N.Y.S.2d 244 (2d Dep't 2006).

December 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 23Zoning Bulletin



:Q' 2017 Thomson Reuters12

• "cannot be opened within 500 feet of a property that is the site of
a school, church, public library, public playground or public
park;"

• "are allowed only on property zoned as a general retail district or
one of three industrial property designations."

Source: cleveland.com; wl1w.cleveland.com

Cleveland's City Council recently voted to approve new zoning require
ments that will reportedly "prevent the sale of medical marijuana in about 95
percent of the city." The legislation "limits the location of marijuana dispensa
ries, cultivation sites, production and refining facilities and research sites."
More specifically, the new ordinance provides that medical marijuana
operations:

OHIO

Zoning BulletinDecember 10, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 23
















	01-04-18 Agenda.pdf
	12-05-17 Draft Minutes.pdf
	Item I.A.1. Rezone Initiation.pdf
	Item I.A.2. 2018 Work Program.pdf
	Zoning Bulletin - 11-10-17.pdf
	Zoning Bulletin - 11-25-17.pdf
	Zoning Bulletin - 12-10-17.pdf
	County PC Agenda - 12-21-17.pdf

